
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Paul Bateman, Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01235 422523

E-mail: paul.bateman@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 18 February 2020

Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 26 FEBRUARY 2020 AT 6.00 PM

DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 7JN

Members of the Committee:
Ian Snowdon (Chairman)
Peter Dragonetti (Vice-
Chair)
Ken Arlett
David Bretherton
Kate Gregory

Lorraine Hillier
Alexandrine Kantor
George Levy
Jo Robb

Ian White
Celia Wilson

Substitutes
Stefan Gawrysiak
Sarah Gray
Victoria Haval
Kellie Hinton

Mocky Khan
Axel Macdonald
Jane Murphy
Caroline Newton

Anne-Marie Simpson
Alan Thompson

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include 
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special 
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on 
this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 

Public Document Pack



2

1 Chairman's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chairman and general housekeeping matters.

2 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.

3 Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 5 - 16)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the meetings 
held on  3 February and 12 February 2020.  

4 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

5 Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent and to receive any notification of any applications deferred or 
withdrawn.

6 Proposals for site visits  

7 Public participation  

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak 
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.  

Development control applications

Planning applications - background papers and additional 
information

All the background papers with the exception of those papers marked 
exempt/confidential (eg those held in enforcement files) used in the reports in this 
agenda are held in the application file (working file) referenced by the application 
number. 

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be 
reported and summarised at the meeting.



3

Summary index of applications

Site Address Proposal Application No Page

8 P19-S4168-FUL 
- Blue Bonnets, 
31 West End, 
Cholsey, OX10 
9LP  

Construction of three detached 
houses on land to rear of 31 West 
End. (As amended by plans and 
Design and Access Statement 
received 22 July reducing the 
scheme from four dwellings to 
three).

P19/S4168/FUL 17 - 30

9 P19-S4050-FUL 
- The Land 
North of 
Woodcote, 
Oxford Road, 
Woodcote  

The Change of Use of an 
Agricultural Field to an Equestrian 
Cross-Country Track including the 
siting of a Porta Cabin and 
associated drainage. (revised plans 
received 18 December, amending 
site access and providing site 
section of proposed water jump)

P19-S4050-FUL 31 - 44

10 P19-S4261-FUL 
- Bournes 
Farmhouse, 
Harpsden 
Road, Binfield 
Heath  

Demolition of existing dwelling and 
erection of a two-storey four-
bedroom detached dwelling with 
basement and detached carport and 
a two storey three-bedroom 
detached dwelling with basement 
and integral garage, both using 
retained access from Harpsden 
Road (updated bat survey received 
19 December 2019 and access 
width confirmed and carport 
enlarged as shown on revised site 
plan received 9 January 2020).

P19-S4261-FUL 45 - 62

11 P20-S0092-O - 
69 Park Street, 
Thame, OX9 
3HU  

Demolition of existing buildings and 
erection of three three-bedroom two-
storey dwellings with parking and 
amenity space.

P20-S0092-O 63 - 84



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee

HELD ON MONDAY 3 FEBRUARY 2020 AT 6.00 PM

DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 7JN

Present:

Ian Snowdon (Chairman)

Peter Dragonetti (Vice Chairman), Ken Arlett, Kate Gregory, Alexandrine Kantor, George 
Levy and Ian White

Apologies:

David Bretherton, Lorraine Hillier, Jo Robb and Celia Wilson tendered apologies. 

Officers:

Paul Bateman, Katherine Canavan, Paula Fox, Simon Kitson and Tom Wyatt

Also present: 

Caroline Newton

152 Chairman's announcements 

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed 
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.

153 Minutes of the previous meeting 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 15 January 
2020 as a correct record and agree that the Chairman sign these as such.

154 Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

155 Urgent business 

There was no urgent business.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2

156 Proposals for site visits 

There were no proposals for site visits.

157 Public participation 

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the 
meeting.

158 P19/S2305/RM - Land off Cat Lane, Stadhampton 

The committee considered application P19/S2305/RM for a Reserved Matters application 
following outline application ref. P16/S3690/O, for the erection of two detached dwellings 
for appearance, landscaping, layout and scale. (as clarified and amended by revised 
drawings and contaminated land questionnaire accompanying Agents email dated 25 
October 2019, and a Streetscene Visualisation Plan received 23 January 2020) upon the 
building plot located off Cat Lane, Stadhampton.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

The planning officer reported that the application had been deferred at the meeting on 15 
January 2020 as councillors had requested a site visit to view the setting of the site and to 
judge the effect of the proposed development. The site visit had taken place on 31 January 
2020. The planning officer also reported that a Construction Traffic Management Plan had 
been submitted with the application, which would manage construction traffic and minimise 
impact to residents of Cat Lane.

Councillor Stephen Dawson, Chairman of Stadhampton Parish Council, spoke on behalf of 
the parish council, objecting to the application.

Richard Hall, spoke on behalf of residents of Cat Lane, objecting to the application.

Caroline Longman and Steven Graham, the agents, spoke in support of the application.

Caroline Newton, the local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.

Contrary to the officers’ recommendation for approval, the committee had several key 
concerns about the application, namely its height, massing, scale and the design of the 
dwellings detracting from the character of the area and the rural setting of Cat Lane. 

A motion moved and seconded, to refuse planning permission was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED; to refuse planning permission for application P19/S2305/RM for the following 
reasons:

1. Height, massing and scale;

2. The design of the dwellings detracting from the character of the area and the rural 
setting of Cat Lane.

 

Page 6



3

159 P19/S0024/FUL - The Barn House, 46 Lower Icknield Way, Chinnor, 
OX39 4EB 

Ian White, a local ward councillor, stood down from the committee for consideration of this 
item. 

The committee considered application P19/S0024/FUL for the partial demolition, rear 
extension and conversion of garage roof with dormer. Erection of 7 dwellings (as amended 
to reduce the number of dwellings and to alter the layout and design of the development) 
at the Barn House, 46 Lower Icknield Way, Chinnor.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

The planning officer reported that the principle of the development was acceptable and 
complied with policy. The proposal was within the settlement boundary, included 
acceptable softening and landscaping and would not generate inappropriate levels of 
traffic. A planning obligation could secure the amenity land.

Councillor Martin Wright, Chairman of the Chinnor Parish Council Planning Committee, 
spoke on behalf of the parish council, objecting to the application.

Mark Garman, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.

Karen Miller, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.

Mark Longworth, the agent, spoke in support of the application.

Ian White, a local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.

The committee considered that the proposal was acceptable and were minded to grant 
planning permission, subject to an additional condition regarding the installation of 
electricity charging points.

A motion moved and seconded, to delegate authority to grant planning permission to the 
Head of Planning was declared carried on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED: to authorise the Head of Planning to grant planning permission for 
application P19/S0024/FUL subject to the prior completion of a planning obligation to 
secure the provision of the communal open space and its future maintenance, and the 
following conditions:

1. Development to be commenced within three years of the planning permission.
2. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
3. A schedule of materials to be agreed prior to the commencement of 

development above foundation level.
4. Tree protection details to be agreed prior to the commencement of the 

development, including demolition.
5. Soft and hard landscaping scheme to be agreed prior to the commencement of the 

development above foundation level.
6. Surface water drainage details to be agreed prior to the commencement of 

development.
7. Foul drainage details to be agreed prior to the commencement of development.

Page 7



4

8. Details of bat mitigation to be submitted prior to the commencement of 
development, including demolition.

9. An archaeological written scheme of investigation to be agreed prior to the 
commencement of development, including demolition.

10. A staged programme of archaeological work to be carried out prior to the 
commencement of development, including demolition.

11. Existing means of access to be improved and laid out prior to the first 
occupation of the development.

12. Parking and turning areas to be constructed prior to the first occupation of the 
development.

13. Garages and car ports to be retained for the parking of vehicles
14. Hours of construction to be limited to 8am to 6pm weekdays, and 8am to 1pm on 

Saturdays.  
15. First floor windows in side elevations of Plots 1, 2, 5 and 7 to be obscure glazed. 
16. Permitted development rights removed for first floor or roof openings in the north 

west (rear) elevations of Plots 3 and 4.
17. Permitted development rights removed for extensions and outbuildings (Classes A 

and E).
18. Additional condition; installation of electricity charging points.

 

160 P19/S4030/O - Recreation Field, Station Road, Cholsey 

Consideration of this item was deferred owing to a key officer’s illness, to be considered by 
the committee at its meeting scheduled for 12 February 2020.

161 P19/S4031/FUL - 57 Reading Road, Henley-on-Thames, RG9 1AB 

Ken Arlett, a local ward councillor, stood down from the committee for consideration of this 
item.

The committee considered application P19/S4031/FUL for a two storey/single storey 
extension to rear of lockup shop to provide separate dwelling to the rear, at 57 Reading 
Road, Henley-on-Thames.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Councillor Ken Arlett, a representative of Henley on Thames Town Council, spoke 
objecting to the application.

Anthony Verey, the agent, spoke in support of the application.

Ken Arlett, a local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.

A query was raised that the proposed development permitted a lower level of amenity 
space than that specified under section 7 of the South Oxfordshire Design Guide and 
Policy D3 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan. The planning officer reported that both 
documents permitted a flexible approach, in cases where the property was within a built-

Page 8



5

up, sustainable, walkable location, with good access to parks and key facilities. 
Additionally, several nearby properties had similar private amenity standards.    

A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on 
being put to the vote. 

RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P19/S4031/FUL, subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Commencement within three years - Full Planning Permission.

2. Development to be in accordance with the approved plans. 

3. Schedule of materials to be submitted and agreed in writing prior to 
     commencement of the development. 

4. The landing window at the north elevation shall be non-opening and fitted with 
obscure glazing prior to first use of the accommodation hereby approved. No 
additional window openings shall be constructed without an application for planning 
permission from the local planning authority.

5. Any gas-fired boilers must meet a minimum standard of <40 mgNOx/kWh.

6.  Prior to first occupation of the dwelling hereby approved, the District Council shall 
be provided with confirmation that the unit has been excluded from eligibility for 
parking permits. A cost of £2200 to amend the Traffic Regulation Order shall be met 
by the applicant through a Unilateral Undertaking. 

The meeting closed at 8.05 pm

Chairman Date

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee

HELD ON WEDNESDAY 12 FEBRUARY 2020 AT 6.00 PM

THE FOUNTAIN CONFERENCE CENTRE, HOWBERY PARK, BENSON LANE, 
WALLINGFORD OX10 8BA

Present:

Ian Snowdon (Chairman)

Ken Arlett, David Bretherton, Kate Gregory, Lorraine Hillier, Alexandrine Kantor, George 
Levy, Jo Robb and Celia Wilson

Apologies:

Peter Dragonetti and Ian White tendered apologies. 

Officers:

Paul Bateman, Victoria Clarke, Sharon Crawford, Emily Hamerton, Kim Gould and Paul 
Lucas

Also present:

Jane Murphy and Anne-Marie Simpson

162 Chairman's announcements 

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed 
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.

163 Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

164 Urgent business 

There was no urgent business.

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



2

165 Proposals for site visits 

There were no proposals for site visits.

166 Public participation 

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the 
meeting.

167 P19/S4030/O - Recreation Field, Station Road, Cholsey 

The committee considered application P19/S4030/O for a community Skate and Mini-
wheel Park (as amended by change of address on 20 November 2019 and revised Design 
and Access Statement received 14 January 2020), at Recreation Field, Station Road, 
Cholsey.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

The planning officer reported that since the despatch of the agenda a further objection had 
been received, which was in respect of noise disturbance. She advised the meeting that in 
the event of planning permission being granted, it was probable that a noise disturbance 
assessment would be undertaken at Reserved Matters stage.

Councillor Colin Worley, a representative of Cholsey Parish Council, spoke in support of 
the application.

James Shepherd, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.

Anne- Marie Simpson, a local ward councillor, spoke in support of the application.

Jane Murphy, a local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.

A motion moved and seconded, to grant outline planning permission was declared carried 
on being put to the vote.

RESOLVED; to grant outline planning permission for application 19/S4030/O subject to 
the following conditions:

1. Commencement - outline planning permission.
2. Construction Management Plan to be submitted.
3. Detailed drawing showing location of the skate/mini park in relation to the existing 

football pitch to be submitted and approved. 
4. Management and maintenance scheme to be submitted and approved.
5. Noise disturbance assessment to be undertaken at Reserved Matters stage.

168 P19/S3220/FUL - Land off Old London Road, Wheatley 

Alexandrine Kantor, the local ward councillor, stood down from the committee for 
consideration of this item.

Page 12



3

The committee considered application P19/S3220/FUL for the installation of a 
synchronous gas-powered standby generation facility, ancillary infrastructure and 
equipment and access. As clarified by revised flood risk assessment received on 17 
December 2019 and revised traffic figures received on 29 January 2020 on land off Old 
London Road, Wheatley.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.

Toby Newman, a representative of Wheatley Parish Council, spoke objecting to the 
application.

Ruaridh Mitchell, the agent spoke in support of the application.

Alexandrine Kantor, the local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.

A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED; to grant planning permission for application P19/S3220/FUL subject to the 
following conditions:

1. Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2.  Approved plans.
3. Temporary Permissions 25 years.
4. Site restoration scheme shall be submitted.
5. Landscaping Scheme (trees and shrubs only).
6. Provide turning Area & Car Parking in accordance with submitted details.
7. No building or raising of land levels.
8. Surface water drainage works (details required).

169 P19/S0332/FUL - Orchard Close Settlement Road, running west 
from T Junction and the Old Post Office, Britwell Salome, OX49 5LH 

The committee considered application P19/S0332/FUL for the installation of equestrian 
training mirrors and retention of temporary hard standing (as amended by additional plans 
and information received 29 May 2019 and 11 October 2019, re-locating the entrance gate 
which will be installed using permitted development rights without planning permission and 
proposing landscaping) at Orchard Close Settlement Road, running west from T Junction 
and the Old Post Office, Britwell Salome.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting. An 
A4 photograph provided by Chris Bidgood, which depicted the riding arena and three 
adjacent properties, was given to the committee for inspection at the meeting. 

Chris Bidgood, representing Britwell Salome Parish Meeting, spoke objecting to the 
application.

Christopher Gregory, the architect, spoke in support of the application.

The committee expressed concern that the council had not sought its own independent 
legal advice regarding permitted development rights in respect of the proposed mirrors and 

Page 13



4

the fact that fuller information on the assessment of glare was not available. It was also 
considered important that committee members visited the site with the conservation officer 
present at the next committee meeting, and therefore a deferral was suggested. 

A motion moved and seconded, to defer planning permission was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED; to defer planning permission for application P19/S0332/FUL subject to the 
following actions:

1. Officers to arrange a site visit.
2. Officers to obtain independent legal advice regarding permitted development rights.
3. Clarification in relation to the impact of the visual impact of the mirrors (officers to 

review the report and check how any glare is assessed).

170 P19/S2894/FUL - Land to the South of Foxhill Close, Playhatch 

The committee considered application P19/S2894/FUL for the erection of a two-storey 
four-bedroom detached house with associated car port and parking (updated flood risk 
assessment and site and street scene plans corrected to accurately reflect previously 
approved landscaping received 21st November 2019 and site plan updated to move hedge 
on north-western boundary next to estate road, as shown on amended plan received 22nd 
January 2020) on land to the South of Foxhill Close, Playhatch.

Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were 
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting. The 
planning officer reported that since the despatch of the agenda, a further objection had 
been received, which was in respect of access, highways and design aspects.  He also 
reported that some objections referred incorrectly to the site’s position within Flood Zone 2; 
the site lay entirely within Flood Zone 1 and the proposal would not increase the risk of 
flooding.

Councillor Richard Berkley, a representative of Eye and Dunsden Parish Council, spoke 
objecting to the application.

Howard Crews, a local resident, of Playhatch Cottages, spoke objecting to the application.

Ryan Hartley, the agent, spoke in support of the application.

The committee considered that evergreen hedging, including trees, at the front of the 
development and on the north-west side of the proposed dwelling where adjoining the 
access road, coupled with the construction of the pedestrian access being moved further 
to the rear of the development, would assist in discouraging inappropriate off street 
parking and help to lessen the visual impact of the development. The insertion of the 
specific requirements outlined above, to the recommended landscaping condition to cover 
these matters would be necessary.  

A motion moved and seconded, to grant planning permission was declared carried on 
being put to the vote.

RESOLVED; to grant planning permission for application P19/S2894/FUL subject to the 
following conditions:

Page 14



5

1. Commencement of development within three years. 
2. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans. 
3. No change in levels.
4. Schedule of Materials to be agreed prior to development above foundation level. 
5. Landscaping details to be agreed prior to development above foundation level 
6. Tree protection details to be agreed prior to commencement
7. Parking & Manoeuvring Areas to be retained as shown on the approved plans 
8. Surface water drainage works to be agreed prior to commencement
9. Withdrawal of Permitted Development Rights for extensions and outbuildings 
10. No carport conversion into accommodation
11. Wildlife Protection mitigation to be carried out as approved
12. Additional condition; extra landscaping and relocation of pedestrian access further to 

rear of development. 

The meeting closed at 8.35 pm

Chairman Date

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 26 February 2020

APPLICATION NO. P19/S4168/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 18.11.2019
PARISH CHOLSEY
WARD MEMBER(S) Anne-Marie Simpson

Jane Murphy
APPLICANT Mr  Royston-Airey
SITE Blue Bonnets 31 West End Cholsey, OX10 9LP
PROPOSAL Variation of condition 2 - Approved Plans of 

application P19/S1585/FUL for changes to the 
designs for plots 2 & 3 and updates to the main 
access road to suit the requirements of the fire 
service (As corrected by Site Plan WST.9101 Rev L 
in relation to the footprint of Plot 2).

Construction of three detached houses on land to 
rear of 31 West End. (As amended by plans and 
Design and Access Statement received 22 July 
reducing the scheme from 4 dwellings to three).

OFFICER Paul Bowers

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 The application is recommended for approval and this report sets out the justification 

as to how I have reached this judgment.

1.2 The application is referred to planning committee because the objection put forward 
by the Cholsey parish council differs from the officer’s recommendation of approval.
 

1.3 The application site forms part of an unusually large rear residential garden of 31 
West End. 

This site forms part of the western edge of the built-up limits of the settlement. 
Agricultural land is situated adjacent to the north west of the site and 
residential/amenity garden land to the south west and north east. 

There is an existing access from the main highway and the site lies approximately 
120m east from the edge of the North Wessex Downs AONB. 

A plan identifying the site can be found at Appendix 1. 

1.4 Planning permission was granted in 2018 under application reference P18/S0465/FUL 
for the construction of three detached houses on land to rear of 31 West End.

The approved layout can be found at Appendix 2.

1.5 A second application for planning permission was submitted and approved under 
application P19/S1585/FUL for an alternative layout and design of three dwellings on 
the site. 

The second approved layout can be found at Appendix 3. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S4168/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 26 February 2020

A discharge of condition application has been submitted under reference 
P19/S4340/DIS which has approved the details required by the pre-commencement 
conditions of P19/S1585/FUL. The permission can now be implemented, and the 
three dwellings built on site. 

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 This is application made under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act for 

the variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission P19/S1585/FUL. 
The variation to the condition relates to a change in the approved drawings. The new 
drawings show the following changes to the plans originally approved by the planning 
permission;

1. Site layout: Plots 2 & 3 have been updated to reflect the design changes and 
the main access road has been updated to allow for the required manoeuvring 
of a fire appliance in accordance with building regulations.

2. Plot 2: The single storey rear extension has been swapped to the other side of 
the house. The horizontal boarding to the elevations has been replaced with 
brickwork. The side elevation with the chimney now features Juliet balconies at 
first floor level.

3. Plot 3: This has been redesigned and the floor area has reduced by over 20%., 
The elevations are broadly the same but adapted to suit the smaller footprint.

2.2 Larger scale plans of the approved layout can be compared by looking at Appendix 2 
and Appendix 3 but as an immediate side by side comparison please see below;

Approved layout -                                            Proposed layout - 

   

2.3 Reduced copies of the plans accompanying the application are attached as Appendix 
4 to this report. All the plans and representations can be viewed on the council’s 
website www.southoxon.gov.uk under the planning application reference number.

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1

3.2

Cholsey Parish Council – Object to the development for the following reasons;
- The proposal is contrary to the Cholsey Neighbourhood Plan as it is outside of 

the built-up area boundary.
- The access is inadequate as a fire engine was unable to access the site 

recently. 

Third Party Representations – 2 x letters of objection covering the following mains 
issues;

- Concern about access for fire services. 
- Concern about highway safety for pedestrians.
- Risk of damage to other properties from fire vehicles getting to the site.  

Page 18

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 26 February 2020

3.3

- Works have started on an extension to Blue Bonnets (the existing dwelling to 
which the application site used to relate) affecting parking and manoeuvring 
space. 

Highways Liaison Officer - No objection subject to conditions.

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P19/S4340/DIS - Fully Discharged on 30th January 2020

Discharge of conditions 3 - surface water drainage, 4 - materials, 5 - boundary walls 
and fences, 6 - tree protection, 7 - construction traffic management & 8 - landscaping 
on application ref. P19/S1585/FUL (amended CTMP Information received 15 January 
2020). Construction of three detached houses on land to rear of 31 West End

P19/S1585/FUL - Approved (24/09/2019)
Construction of three detached houses on land to rear of 31 West End. (As amended 
by plans and Design and Access Statement received 22 July reducing the scheme from 
4 dwellings to three).

P19/S2267/HH - Approved (10/09/2019)
Replace existing conservatory at rear with part two storey/part single storey extension. 
Add single storey bay window to rear of kitchen. Add two storey extension to front. 
Remodel front and build a first floor extension over existing family room. Internal 
modifications.

P18/S0465/FUL - Approved (03/08/2018)
Construction of three detached houses on land to rear of 31 West End.  (As amended 
by plans and arboricultural report dated May 2018 accompanying e-mail form agent 
received 2 May 2018).

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies
CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSH2  -  Housing density
CSH1  -  Amount and distribution of housing
CSB1  -  Conservation and improvement of biodiversity
CSQ3  -  Design
CSR1  -  Housing in villages
CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP 2011) policies;
C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
C6  -  Maintain & enhance biodiversity
C9  -  Loss of landscape features
D1  -  Principles of good design
D10  -  Waste Management
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
EP4  -  Impact on water resources
EP6  -  Sustainable drainage
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development

Page 19

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S1585/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S2267/HH
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P18/S0465/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 26 February 2020

G4  -  Protection of Countryside
H4  -  Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

Cholsey Neighbourhood Plan policies; 
Map 4 – Cholsey Built Up Area Boundary. 
Policy CNP H2 allows for infill on sites within the built-up area boundary provided 
certain criteria are met.
Policy CNP H3 seeks a range and mix of new homes.
Policy CNP H4 required Affordable Housing and Starter Homes.
Policy CNP H5 requires an appropriate scale and context of development.
Policy CNP H7 sets out parking requirements.
Policy CNP E1 sets out landscape impact considerations.
Policy CNP I1 refers to the provision of facilities.
Policy CNP I3 requires water and waste water impact assessments.
Policy CNP I1 refers to surface and groundwater drainage.
Policy CNP T1 requires new development to connect to walking and cycling networks. 

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016)

Paragraph 48 of the NPPF allows for weight to be given to relevant policies in emerging 
plans, unless other material considerations indicate otherwise, and only subject to the 
stage of preparation of the plan, the extent of unresolved objections and the degree of 
consistency of the relevant emerging policies with the NPPF.

Emerging South Oxfordshire Local Plan 
On 10 October 2019 the Secretary of State for Housing Communities and Local 
Government issued a Holding Direction on the Council in relation to the emerging Local 
Plan 2034. The holding direction has been made under the provisions of Section 21A of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. This means that the emerging plan 
has 'no effect whilst the direction is in force', this is set out in section 21A(2) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. The emerging Local Plan has no weight 
at this stage.

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires 

applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the local 
planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far 
as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

In the case of this application, the most relevant parts of the Development Plan are the 
South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2027 (SOCS) which was adopted in December 2012, 
the saved policies of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP) and the policies 
contained within the Cholsey Neighbourhood Development Plan (CNDP).

6.2 When assessing section 73 applications the Council can only consider the original
condition and the reasons for applying the condition; new conditions can be attached
but only in so far as they apply to the original condition. If the Council decides that
planning permission should be granted subject to the same conditions as those subject
to which the previous permission was granted, they should refuse the application

Page 20



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 26 February 2020

6.3 The main issues to consider in relation to this proposal are as follows;

 The principle of the development and the development plan.
 Whether there has been any material change in site circumstances or 

planning policy in the intervening time between the parent planning 
permission and now. 

 Impact on the character of the site and the wider area. 
 Impact on the amenities of the occupants of nearby properties.
 Conditions.

6.4 The principle of the development.

This application seeks to vary a condition on an existing planning permission. The 
principle of the development has been accepted and cannot be revisited as part of this 
application. 

However, it should be noted that the area of the application site which contains the new 
built form is outside of the built-up area as defined on Map 4 – Cholsey built up area 
boundary, contained within the NDP and referred to in Policy CNP H2. This proposal 
therefore conflicts with the development plan. However, this has been accepted in the 
granting of the previous planning permission P19/S1585/FUL. That permission was 
granted post the adoption of the neighbourhood plan and the Cholsey parish council 
had no objection. It can be implemented any time between now and the 24 September 
2022.

The main issues surrounding this proposal are not a matter of whether three houses 
can be built on the site but rather the differences between what has been approved and 
what is now proposed. 

6.5 Whether there has been any material change in site circumstances or planning 
policy in the intervening time between the parent planning permission and now. 

The permission (otherwise known as the parent permission), which this application 
seeks to vary, was granted in September 2019 less than 6 months ago. 

In planning policy terms nothing has changed beyond the holding objection which has 
been served in connection with the emerging South Oxfordshire Local Plan. However, 
that document had no material bearing on the determination of the parent planning 
application. 

In respect of the site there has been some vegetation clearance as can be noted by the 
concerns of the neighbours from bonfires taking place on the site. However, beyond 
that the circumstances of the site have not materially changed to the extent that it would 
justify the council taking a wholly different approach to this variation of condition 
application. 

6.6 Impact on the character of the site and the wider area. 

SOCS policy CSQ3 seeks to ensure that all new development is of a high quality and 
inclusive design, responds positively to its site and surroundings; and is of a scale, type 
and density appropriate to the site and its setting. 

SOLP policy D1 further supports good design principles. Policy H4 also requires the 
character of the area is not adversely affected and design details are appropriate.

Page 21



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 26 February 2020

CNDP policy CNPH5 seeks to ensure that development should be appropriate to the 
context to the scale of the site context.

6.7 The changes to Plots 2 and 3 are either a reduction in size or changes in detailing. In 
my view they will not be discernible from beyond the site and consequently will not have 
a material impact on the wider character of the area.

The alteration to the internal road layout is limited to the turning area within the site. 
The change is relatively small. It does not significantly impact on the shape and position 
of the plots and will not be visible from outside of the site. 

In my view the development remains compliant with the above policies. 

6.8 Impact on the amenities of the occupants of nearby properties.

SOLP policy H4 criterion (iv) requires there are no overriding amenity objections and 
criterion (v), where the development constitutes backland development, it does not 
cause issues of privacy, access or extend the built limits of the settlement. However, 
the policy does qualify that there may be some opportunity to develop suitable back 
gardens in the district’s larger settlements. 

SOLP Policy D4 requires that new dwellings are laid out to secure a reasonable level of 
privacy for occupants and the amenities and privacy of neighbouring properties should 
not be harmed.
CNDP policy CN5 states that new development should provide a neighbourly 
environment for all residents.

6.9 The changes between the approved and proposed plans do not increase the size of the 
buildings, do not alter their position relative to adjoining properties and do not introduce 
new first floor windows that would create additional overlooking.

Comparing the two sets of plans, I am satisfied that the changes proposed will not 
cause any material harm to the amenities of the occupants of properties adjoining the 
site.

The development remains in accordance with the above policies. 

6.10 Conditions.
When assessing section 73 applications the Council can only consider the original 
condition and the reasons for applying the condition; new conditions can be attached 
but only in so far as they apply to the original condition. 

Paragraph 015 of NPPG notes where an application under section 73 is granted, the
effect is the issue of a new planning permission, sitting alongside the original
permission, which remains intact. It further advises that to assist with clarity
decision notices for the grant of planning permission under section 73 should also
repeat the relevant conditions from the original planning permission, unless they have
already been discharged

6.11 The proposed changes to the development from substituting the approved plans with 
the development shown in the proposed plans and the recent discharge of conditions 
has a knock-on effect on some of the other conditions. For clarity I have gone through 
each condition and noted the changes.

Page 22



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 26 February 2020

6.12 Condition 1 – This has been adjusted so that the 3 year date for commencement of 
development reflects the date of the original planning permission. 

Condition 2 – This condition now lists the new approved plans.

Condition 3 – Relates to surface water drainage details. These have been submitted as 
part of discharge of condition application P19/S4340/DIS. The condition is proposed to 
now state that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved details 
of P19/S4340/DIS. 

Condition 4 - Relates to materials. These have been submitted as part of discharge of 
condition application P19/S4340/DIS. The condition is proposed to now state that the 
development is carried out in accordance with the approved details of P19/S4340/DIS.

Condition 5 – This condition relates to boundary details. These have been submitted as 
part of discharge of condition application P19/S4340/DIS. The condition is proposed to 
now state that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved details 
of P19/S4340/DIS.

Condition 6 – The condition required tree protection details to be submitted and 
approved by the council. These have been submitted as part of discharge of condition 
application P19/S4340/DIS. The condition is proposed to now state that the 
development is carried out in accordance with the approved details of P19/S4340/DIS.

Condition 7 – This related to a construction traffic management plan. This has been 
submitted as part of discharge of condition application P19/S4340/DIS and approved by 
Oxfordshire County Council. The condition is proposed to now state that the 
development is carried out in accordance with the approved details of P19/S4340/DIS.

Condition 8 - Relates to landscaping details. These have been submitted as part of 
discharge of condition application P19/S4340/DIS. The condition is proposed to now 
state that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved details of 
P19/S4340/DIS.

Condition 9 – Relates to the new vehicular access to be provided to the highway 
authorities specifications. This condition remains unchanged. 

Condition 10 – This condition relates to the retention of parking and manoeuvring 
areas. This condition has been updated and makes specific reference to the plan 
showing the revised layout. 

Condition 11 – This condition relates to vision splay protection and again has been 
amended to make reference to the updated plan number. 

Condition 12 – Seeks the retention of the garage accommodation unless planning 
permission is first granted. The condition remains unchanged.

Condition 13 – Removes the normal permitted development right to extend the houses 
once they are built. This condition is retained and remains unchanged. 

Page 23



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 26 February 2020

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 It is recommended that planning permission is granted for the variation of condition 2 in 

respect of the previously approved plans. The proposed amendments to the approved 
plans do not adversely affect the character of the area, neighbour amenity, highway 
safety, trees or the landscape setting of the village. 

In conjunction with the attached conditions the proposal complies with development 
plan policies

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
8.1 That planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions;

8.2 1 : Development to commence within 3 years from the original permission
2 : Approved plans *
3 : Surface water drainage works (as approved)
4 : Schedule of Materials (as approved)
5 : Boundary walls & fences (as approved)
6 : Tree Protection (as approved)
7 : Construction Traffic Management (as approved)
8 : Landscaping (incl access road and hard standings) (as approved)
9 : New vehicular access 
10 : Parking & Manoeuvring Areas Retained 
11 : Vision splay protection 
12 : No Garage conversion into accommodation
13 : Withdrawal of P.D. (Part 1 Class A) - no extensions etc

Author:         Mr. P Bowers
E-mail :         paul.bowers@southandvale.gov.uk
Contact No:  01235 422600

 

Page 24

mailto:paul.bowers@southandvale.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Page 25

Agenda Item 8P19-S4168-FUL



Appendix 2

Page 26

SAV_PALBOW
Typewriter
Approved Layout under application P18/S0465/FUL
The first permission



Appendix 3

P
age 27

SAV_PALBOW_1
Typewriter
Approved Layout P19/S1585/FUL
The second permission and the permission being varied



Appendix 4.1

Page 28



Appendix 4.2

P
age 29



Appendix 4.3

P
age 30



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

APPLICATION NO. P19/S4050/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 6.11.2019
PARISH WOODCOTE
WARD MEMBERS Jo Robb

Lorraine Hillier
APPLICANT Hildred Partnership
SITE The Land North of Woodcote Oxford Road 

Woodcote
PROPOSAL The Change of Use of an Agricultural Field to an 

Equestrian Cross-Country Track including the siting 
of a Porta Cabin and associated drainage. (revised 
plans received 18th December, amending site 
access and providing site section of proposed water 
jump)

OFFICER Simon Kitson

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application is referred to the Planning Committee as the officer’s 

recommendation of approval conflicts with the views of Woodcote Parish Council. 

1.2 The application site (attached at Appendix A) is comprised of an area of land 
measuring approximately 11.14ha in area and currently put to pasture. The 
surrounding land is mainly agricultural, with some residential properties separated by 
roads and farm tracks to the east and south. There are currently vehicular access 
points at the A4074 and the B471/ Goring Road. 

1.3 The site falls wholly within the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 
The land is within the Chilterns Escarpment, described under Character Area 8 of the 
South Oxfordshire Landscape Assessment (SOLA). 

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 As detailed in the application submission, consent is sought for an equestrian, British 

Eventing Standard Cross-Country training course intended to provide facilities for a 
range of equestrian users.

2.2 The course will comprise 80-100 specialist moveable jumps which would include a 
water complex that will be formed in the ground permanently. There would also be an 
area of hard-standing formed and the siting of a temporary, timber clad cabin providing 
welfare facilities. 

2.3 The following restrictions are proposed:
 The site will be open between 8am-8pm (5pm on weekends) February to 

October inclusive.
 There will be a maximum of 8 horses on the course at any one time
 There will be two members of part-time staff dedicated to the enterprise, one will 

be managing the patrons and the other maintaining the obstacles and course. 
There will also be an office member of staff off-site who will manage the 
bookings and the general running of the business.

 Vehicles will park on the hard-standing where the horses can be unloaded and 
prepared for the course. The land will also have holding paddocks

Page 31

Agenda Item 9

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P19/S4050/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

 There will only be security lighting on the site with no flood lighting being 
proposed

2.4 The current proposed site plans are attached as Appendix B. All other supporting 
documentation associated with the application can be viewed on the council’s website, 
www.southoxon.gov.uk.

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Woodcote Parish Council – Objection. Response to amendment:

 Access proposed to the site although changed and moved 15 metres to provide a 
51 metre vision splay as per OCC highways, a large section of the vision splay is 
covered with vegetation and mature hedging/trees, there is no reference to this 
being cut back therefore the vision is obscured making the access still unsuitable.

 It is worth noting from the traffic survey taken by Woodcote Parish Council that this 
section of highway carries 4000 vehicles per day, in peak periods 250-300 vehicles 
in one direction and 100-150 vehicles in the other direction making visibility from the 
site very important.

 Woodcote Parish Council also support the Chiltern Conservation Boards proposal 
for landscaping to shield the porta cabin and car park.

 Should a solution to the access be found Woodcote Parish Council recommend that 
a 5 year temporary planning be granted, this gives time to access the commercial 
impact on the site within the AONB.

Chilterns Conservation Board - No strong views

 The Chilterns AONB is nationally protected as one of the finest areas of countryside 
in the UK. Public bodies and statutory undertakers have a statutory duty of regard 
to the purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural beauty of the AONB. This is 
reinforced within the WNDP and the Chilterns AONB Management Plan policies.

 The use, providing it maintains a low-key status, would conserve the landscape 
character of the site. To enhance the site will require further consideration as to 
landscaping and the submission of details. Conditions as to landscaping and 
periodic use during the year are appropriate and within the tests as set out in 
Planning Practice Guidance.

 The splays must not result in erosion of the tree screen to the northern boundary. 
Further, any parking layout matters the subject of a planning condition must be 
consistent with the rural setting here. The standard condition implies an urban car 
parking layout/drainage.

 The use can be controlled to the February – October period. The temporary nature 
of the eventing structures would permit their removal from the landscape and their 
storage during this period. No illumination / lighting can be permitted at the car park.

CPRE Oxfordshire – comments made:
 Concerns expressed over the potential impact upon the AONB and whether it 

would satisfy the relevant management plan guidance
 No details are supplied in relation to hardstanding or the security lighting. These 

should be minimal and must conform to guidance
 CPRE support the Parish Council’s stance on a 5 year temporary permission 

Oxfordshire County Council Single Response - No strong views
 The splays proposed within the revised access plan are considered acceptable.

Forestry Officer (South Oxfordshire District Council) - No strong views

Page 32

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

3.6

3.7

3.8

 No objections to the proposal, subject to replacement trees being planted
to mitigate the loss of trees and hedgerow in order to facilitate the access. A 
landscaping condition should be attached to ensure that replacement trees and 
hedges are planted. The general tree protection condition should also be attached 
to ensure the RPA of trees and hedges to the north of the proposed parking area 
and either side of the proposed access are protected throughout construction

Countryside Officer(South Oxfordshire & Vale of White Horse) - No strong views
 the section of hedgerow to be removed to facilitate the amended western access is 

an ecologically important hedgerow under The Hedgerow Regulations 1997.
 Alternative access locations of lesser impact have been considered and ruled

out.
 To ensure compliance with the development plan, compensatory planting should be 

provided.

Drainage - (South & Vale) - No strong views
 Surface water and foul drainage details are required as a condition of consent

Neighbour Objections (9) Key issues raised:
 Insufficient information provided in relation to hours of use, waste treatment, 

landscaping, staffing and security system to prevent unauthorised occupation.
 The site is within a very prominent location and would be seen from a great 

distance. The visual impact would be exacerbated by floodlighting, leading to an 
erosion of the dark skies and harm to native wildlife

 The proposal would fail the statutory test in that it would neither "conserve” nor 
“enhance” the Chilterns AONB. Much of the natural beauty of this part of the AONB 
is derived from pasture and agriculture

 The proposed access would be very dangerous, with a blind bend and high-speed 
traffic exiting from the A4074. Further, the proposed scheme would increase traffic 
through Woodcote, specifically the junctions between South Stoke Road and 
Reading Road, and Beech Lane and Reading Road. These have known issues, 
recognised within the Village Statement

 The proposal could be a means of achieving “brownfield” status as a precursor to 
housing development

 There are opportunities to significantly enhance the land with large-scale 
landscaping and conservation

 There are two statutory listed building to the south west, Toggs and Weevil 
Cottages, whose settings would be impacted by the proposed equestrian use. This 
would be both in terms of neighbouring amenity and heritage. 

 This development requires a harmful change of use from agricultural production.

Comments in support (13) Key points:
 The revised access plan provides sufficient visibility levels of oncoming traffic
 The proposal would benefit the equestrian community. There is a clear demand for 

this type of facility and the proposal would significantly reduce current travelling 
distances 

 The issues raised by members of the local community are not as severe as 
suggested. Cross country training is undertaken in daylight hours without the need 
for artificial lighting, the jumps have a natural appearance and the scale of the  
activity is appropriate within a rural setting. 

Page 33



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 There is no planning history for the site.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 Woodcote Neighbourhood Development Plan (WNDP) Policies;

D1 – Good Design
D2 – Light Pollution
T1 – Traffic Congestion
E1 – Green Space and Landscaping

5.2 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies;  

CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSB1  -  Conservation and improvement of biodiversity
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSEN3 - Heritage
CSM1  -  Transport
CSQ3  -  Design
CSR2  -  Employment in rural areas

5.3 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP) Policies;

C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
C6  -  Maintain & enhance biodiversity
C8  -  Adverse affect on protected species
C9  -  Loss of landscape features
CON5 – Setting of listed buildings
D1  -  Principles of good design
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G4  -  Protection of Countryside
R10  -  Proposals involving the keeping of horses
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.4 Emerging Local Plan 2034

On 10 October 2019 the Secretary of State for Housing Communities and Local 
Government issued a Holding Direction on the Council in relation to the emerging Local 
Plan 2034. The holding direction has been made under the provisions of Section 21A of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.This means that the emerging plan 
has 'no effect whilst the direction is in force', this is set out in section 21A(2) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. The emerging Local Plan holds no 
weight at present.

5.5 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016)

5.6 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Chilterns AONB Management Plan 2019-2024

Page 34



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The main areas for consideration are as follows:

 The principle of the proposed change of use 
 The impact of the design, height, scale and materials upon the character of the 

site and the wider AONB;
 The impact upon the highway network, in terms of highway safety, access and 

parking provision.
 The environmental and ecological impact
 The impact upon residential amenity

Principle

6.2 Policy R10 of the SOLP is broadly supportive of proposals involving equestrian uses, 
recognising that horse riding for recreational purposes, horse breeding and training are 
common activities within rural parts of this district.  The policy does nonetheless require 
the proposed use to be weighed against the landscape, traffic and amenity impacts and 
it does state that very careful consideration will be given to new commercial riding 
establishments where the scale of operations may be particularly detrimental to the 
character of the countryside. Where development relating to the keeping of horses is 
acceptable in principle, every effort should be made to ensure that any new
buildings and structures are sited and designed to harmonise with their surroundings, 
that the development is to a high standard and will be adequately maintained.

6.3 Officers note the applicant’s point that the proposal is part of an agricultural 
diversification scheme intended to support their wider farming business, in accordance 
with SOCS Policy CSR2 and that there may be some modest economic benefits arising 
from the seasonal staffing requirements. In response to some of the views expressed 
during the formal consultation, there are no reasonable grounds to consider the 
proposal as a precursor to a housing development. Furthermore, land in equestrian use 
would not normally be considered as ‘Brownfield’. The majority of structures proposed 
are temporary in nature and officers have no evidence that the land could not be readily 
restored to agricultural use if the equestrian facility were to cease operating from the 
site.      

Scale, design and landscape

6.4 In terms of the landscape impact, officers are mindful of Section 85 of the Countryside 
and Rights of Way Act 2000 and Paragraph 172 of the NPPF. These set out the District 
Council’s duty to have regard to the ‘purpose of conserving and enhancing the natural 
beauty of the area of outstanding natural beauty.’ and afford AONBs the highest status 
of protection. Several consultees, including the Chiltern Conservation Board (CCB) and 
the Campaign to Protect Rural England (CPRE) make reference to these parts of the 
legislation and specific sections of the Chilterns AONB Management Plan 2019-2024. 
SOCS Policy CSEN1 reinforces the need to protect the district’s distinct landscape 
character and key features from inappropriate development. 

6.5 Notwithstanding the scale of the proposal, officers are inclined to agree with the CCB, 
that the proposed use is not incompatible with the requirement to conserve the 
landscape character of the site, particularly in view of the limited number of horses 
occupying the course at any one time, the seasonal nature of the facilities and the 
limited degree of permanence to the new structures. As set out in Policy R10, the 

Page 35



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

grazing of any number of horses would not require planning permission and 
recreational riding activities are a relatively common pastime in rural areas. 

6.6 It is accepted that the site is within a relatively prominent location at the edge of the 
settlement. However, aside from the water jump feature, which would resemble a 
natural water body, there would be no significant engineering operations towards the 
south of the site and the series of timber moveable jumps would be relatively low-key 
features within filtered public views.  To the northern parts of the site, the areas of 
operational development would be concentrated towards the western corner. Whilst 
gravel hardstanding is proposed, officers do recognise that the parking area and 
timber-clad portable cabin might detract from the rural character of the site without 
additional screening. 

6.7 Parts of the boundary along the A4074 are deciduous, meaning that aspects of the 
development would be more prominent outside the summer months and it is apparent 
that there would be some tree and hedgerow removal required in order for the access 
and visibility splays to be provided and maintained to the standard expected by the 
Local Highways Authority (LHA). It is therefore particularly important that the boundary 
treatments within these areas are reinforced, reducing any visual prominence of the 
development within public views. The applicant is agreeable to these areas being 
agreed by condition, an approach supported by the CCB and the council’s Forestry and 
Countryside Team.  

6.8 Provided that the landscaping measures provided in mitigation are suitably robust, 
officers consider that the proposal would conserve the landscape character of the site 
and there would not be a harmful impact upon the rural setting within this part of 
Woodcote. There would be no conflict with SOCS Policy CSEN1. Officers do not 
consider that there are reasonable grounds to impose a 5-year temporary permission in 
this instance, given the lack of objection by the LHA to the amendment and the long-
term landscaping plan proposed in order to address visual impacts.

6.9 Whilst a number of objectors raise issues in relation to floodlighting, none is proposed 
within the application. The agent has advised that the security lighting would be on a 
timer and could be motion sensitive. Further details on this should be obtained as a 
condition.   

Highway safety

6.10 The site is currently served by two access points onto dual-lane highways, one to the 
north at the A4074 and one to the west at the B471. Whilst there is evidence that a 
pedestrian access has existed in the latter location, it has been widened for vehicular 
use without consent from the council. Even if it were a longstanding vehicular access 
point, officers are in no doubt that the current proposal would result in more vehicular 
movements than a standard agricultural use. The LHA initial objection was confined to 
the substandard visibility of oncoming traffic. Resultant congestion on other aspects of 
the road network was not raised as an issue.  

6.11 The northern access point was not deemed to be safe by the applicant’s highways 
consultant due to the road conditions along this stretch of the A4704, which is subject 
to the national speed limit. There were potential issues arising from slow-moving horse 
lorries and vehicles with horse trailers leaving the site, in conjunction with poor site 
lines. It is understood that the Local Highways Authority (LHA) concur with this 
assessment. 

Page 36



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

6.12 Following the LHA’s objection to the initial submission, the applicant accepted that 
greater levels of visibility would be required at a new access point to the west. This 
revised access provision was informed by discussion with the LHA and it would achieve 
greater visibility splays of 2.4m x 51.8m minimum. The LHA no longer object to the 
application on highway safety grounds and officers have no basis to challenge the 
expert advice provided. It is recommended that conditions are attached requiring the 
blocking off of the substandard access points prior to the commencement of the 
equestrian use and for the visibility splays shown on plan to be retained free from 
obstruction.  

Ecology

6.13 The council’s Forestry and Countryside Team have commented on the scheme.  No 
objections are expressed, subject to conditions. Provided that compensatory planting is 
undertaken in mitigation for the loss of the section of hedgerow following the creation of 
the new access, the development can achieve compliance with Policy CSB1 of the 
SOCS. 

Drainage

6.14 The site is not within an area known to be at high risk of flooding and there are few 
engineering operations proposed. Following dialogue with the council’s drainage team, 
it is agreed that foul and surface water drainage requirements can be addressed by 
condition.  

Environment and amenity

6.15 The application was discussed with the Environmental Health team and no concerns 
were expressed in relation to waste. They would normally envisage manure to be 
removed by a contractor.  

6.16 With regard to the impact upon the nearest residential properties, officers note the 
significant intervening distance between the water jump and the nearest dwellings at 
Weevil Cottage and the Red Lane bungalow housing development, more than 70m. 
These properties are also separated from the application site by the main highway. 
Having regard to the intensity of the proposed use, up to 8 horses simultaneously using 
an approximately 10ha area, the lack of artificial lighting or any visible built structures, 
officers do not consider that there would a harmful impact upon neighbouring amenity 
in terms of loss of privacy, noise or other disturbances. 

6.17 Whilst a neighbour also objects to the heritage impact upon the listed buildings at 
Weevil/ Toggs cottages, officers consider that the views from these properties would be 
largely unaltered. The relatively low-key activities proposed within the sizeable parcel of 
land would not compromise their historic rural setting.  

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The proposal broadly complies with the relevant Development Plan policies and 

national planning guidance. Strictly subject to the attached conditions, officers are 
satisfied that the proposed change to equestrian use would not harm the rural setting of 
the site or the special landscape character and scenic beauty of this part of the 
Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. Following advice from the Local 
Highways Authority, officers are also satisfied that the proposed access arrangements 
are acceptable in terms of their impact upon highway safety. Officers are also satisfied 
that there would not be material harm to the amenity of the nearest residents.   

Page 37



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
Grant Planning Permission, subject to the following conditions:

1. Commencement within 3 years - Full Planning Permission

2. Development to be implemented in accordance with the approved plans unless 
varied by other conditions of consent.

3. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a scheme for 
the landscaping of the site, including the planting of trees and hedging, and the 
treatment of the access road and hard standings, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include 
details on the extent and location of hedgerow planting on site, with 
specifications for the species, best practice techniques to establish and maintain 
any planting, and a scheme of replacement should planting fail in the first 5 
years. The agreed planting shall be delivered within 1 year of the first use of the 
development and retained as such.

4. Prior to the commencement of the approved scheme, surface water and foul 
water drainage details must be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

5. The vision splays shown on the approved plan (2054-001 A) shall not be 
obstructed by any object, structure, planting or other material with a height 
exceeding or growing above 0.6m metres as measured from carriageway level.

6. Prior to first use of the approved development, the existing access points onto 
the A4074 and B417 shall be closed and not used by any vehicular traffic 
associated with the development.  

7. Details of the proposed security lighting must be agreed prior to first use of the 
proposed development. No other external lighting shall be installed without the 
prior grant of planning permission from the Local Planning Authority.

8. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the 
equestrian facilities shall only be used for the purposes and operating times 
specified within the supporting planning statement (Ref: 1524-7907).

Author: Simon Kitson
Email: Planning@southoxon.gov.uk
Tel: 01235 422600

 

Page 38

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


Appendix A

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 9
P

19-S
4050-FU

L



Red Lane

Weevil

Cottage

Pightle

P

a

t
h

 
(
u

m

)

P

a

t
h

 
(
u

m

)

Massey's

Field

L

A

N

E

Cottage

Toggs

Cottage

Bungalow

R

E

D

Massey's Pightle

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

A

4

0

7

4

T

i

d

m

o

r

e

 

L

a

n

e

Timber clad Portacabin

- Welfare facilities

Water jump.

Existing

ground level.

Existing

ground level.

Water Level.

Moveable

jump.

Moveable

jump.

Approx. 600mm

Typical Section Throu. Water Jump - Facing North (1:100)

. Revision

BCM
The Old Dairy
Winchester Hill
Sutton Scotney
Near Winchester
Hampshire
SO21 3NZ

t 01962 763 900
www.bcm.co.uk

Drawing No.

Drawn By

Scale

Drawing Title

Project Name

Client

Sheet Size A1

Creation Date

Hildred Partnership

The Land North of Woodcote

7907

Location Plan

1:100 & 1:1250

MJP

21.09.19

001 A

NOTES:
1. This drawing remains the copyright of BCM
2. All dimensions and levels are to be checked on site prior to works commencing.
3. Do not scale from this drawing. Use figured dimensions only.
4. Any discrepancies found are to be reported to the Project Manager immediately.
5. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with sub-consultants and specialists

drawings.
6. CAD File name: 7907.001 Location Plan.dwg
7. If BCM logo is not in colour this is not an original drawing

Revisions
Rev Date Description By

A 18.12.2019 Water jump section added to the drawings MJP

Meters1:1250

62.5 125

PLANNING

Appendix B

P
age 40



LEGEND

SITE BOUNDARY / FENCE

B

4

7

1

 

R

E

D

 

L

A

N

E

A

4

0

7

4

PROPOSED
ACCESS

1
2

3

4
5

6
7

8
9

10
11

12
13

14
15

16 10.00

5.00

Rev DescriptionDate

A3

Chk

Client

Project

Drawing Title

Drawing Status

Drawing No.

Size

Rev

Drn App

DateDrawn ScaleDesigned

This drawing has been specifically prepared to meet the requirements of the named client and

may contain design and innovative features which differ from conventional design standards.

2054-002

W: www.cad-precision.com

E: info@cad-precision.com

T: 01273 661753

#cadprecision  |

Facebook  |  Linked-IN

P
L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
:

1
1
 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r
 
2
0
1
9
 
1
7
:
2
4
:
0
9

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

FIELD AT WOODCOTE

PROPOSED ACCESS AND

HORSE BOX PARKING

FOR PLANNING

AS AS OCT 2019 1:500

A

- 28/10/19 ORIGINAL ISSUE AS NC NC

A 11/12/19

ACCESS MOVED SOUTH

AS NC NC

0 10 20 m

P
age 41



LEGEND

SITE BOUNDARY / FENCE

B

4

7

1

 

R

E

D

 

L

A

N

E

A

4

0

7

4

PROPOSED
ACCESS

VISIBILITY SPLAY

2.40 x 51.80 METRES

VISIBILITY SPLAY TO TANGENT POINT

VISIBILITY SPLAY 2.40 x 96.00 METRES

Rev DescriptionDate

A3

Chk

Client

Project

Drawing Title

Drawing Status

Drawing No.

Size

Rev

Drn App

DateDrawn ScaleDesigned

This drawing has been specifically prepared to meet the requirements of the named client and

may contain design and innovative features which differ from conventional design standards.

2054-001

W: www.cad-precision.com

E: info@cad-precision.com

T: 01273 661753

#cadprecision  |

Facebook  |  Linked-IN

P
L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
:

1
1
 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r
 
2
0
1
9
 
1
7
:
2
2
:
1
9

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

FIELD AT WOODCOTE

PROPOSED ACCESS

AND ASSOCIATED VISIBILITY SPLAYS

FOR INFORMATION

AS AS SEPT 2019 1:500

A

- 30/09/19 ORIGINAL ISSUE AS NC NC

A 11/12/19

ACCESS MOVED SOUTH

AS NC NC

0 10 20 m

P
age 42



Red Lane

Weevil

Cottage

Pightle

P

a

t
h

 
(
u

m

)

P

a

t
h

 
(
u

m

)

Massey's

Field

L

A

N

E

Cottage

Toggs

Cottage

Bungalow

R

E

D

Massey's Pightle

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

A

4

0

7

4

T

i

d

m

o

r

e

 

L

a

n

e

Timber clad Portacabin

- Welfare facilities

Water jump.

Location of Fence Jump - Indicative position, number and size.

Temporary jumps will be moved throughout the season.

KEY

. Revision

BCM
The Old Dairy
Winchester Hill
Sutton Scotney
Near Winchester
Hampshire
SO21 3NZ

t 01962 763 900
www.bcm.co.uk

Drawing No.

Drawn By

Scale

Drawing Title

Project Name

Client

Sheet Size A1

Creation Date

Hildred Partnership

The Land North of Woodcote

7907

Location Plan - Indicative
Jumps marked on.

1:1250

MJP

27.01.2020

003

NOTES:
1. This drawing remains the copyright of BCM
2. All dimensions and levels are to be checked on site prior to works commencing.
3. Do not scale from this drawing. Use figured dimensions only.
4. Any discrepancies found are to be reported to the Project Manager immediately.
5. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with sub-consultants and specialists

drawings.
6. CAD File name: 7907.001 Location Plan.dwg
7. If BCM logo is not in colour this is not an original drawing

Revisions
Rev Date Description By

Meters1:1250

62.5 125

PLANNING

P
age 43

SAV_SIMKIT
Textbox
INDICATIVE LOCATIONS FOR MOVEABLE JUMPS



 

Page 44



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

APPLICATION NO. P19/S4261/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 22.11.19
PARISH BINFIELD HEATH
WARD MEMBERS Leigh Rawlins & David Bartholomew
APPLICANT Mr J Cocks
SITE Bournes Farmhouse, Harpsden Road, Binfield 

Heath
PROPOSAL Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of a two-

storey 4-bedroom detached dwelling with basement 
and detached carport and a two storey 3-bedroom 
detached dwelling with basement and integral 
garage, both using retained access from Harpsden 
Road (updated bat survey received 19th December 
2019 and access width confirmed and carport 
enlarged as shown on revised site plan received 9th 
January 2020).

OFFICER Paul Lucas

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1

1.2

Officers recommend that planning permission is granted. This report explains how 
officers have reached this conclusion. The application is referred to Planning 
Committee due to Binfield Heath Parish Council’s objection.

The application site is identified at Appendix A. It comprises a detached two storey 
dwelling at the northern end of Binfield Heath within the Chilterns AONB. The existing 
dwelling is constructed in red brick with a slate roof. The site boundaries are denoted 
by mature and semi-mature trees and close board fencing. In recent years two-storey 
dwellings have been built on either side of Bournes Farmhouse on land that formed 
part of its curtilage, Mulberry Cottage to the north-east and Acacia House to the 
south-west.  The Bottle & Glass public house, a Grade II listed building lies further to 
the north-east. There are other dwellings to the south-west that form a continuous 
built-up frontage along this part of Harpsden Road. There is a slight fall in land levels 
across the site and continuing beyond from south-west to north-east. There are no 
other special designations on this site.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1

2.2

The application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of the existing dwelling 
and its replacement with two detached houses, as detailed on the plans and supporting 
documents submitted with the application. The bat survey, access and carport 
dimensions have been updated during the processing of the application.

Copies of the current plans are provided at Appendix B whilst other documentation 
associated with the application can be viewed on the Council’s website.

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Binfield Heath Parish Council – Objection:

1.Binfield Heath Parish Council objects to this development on two grounds: As we 
stated on the previous application (assigned in error to the no objection category), we 
object in principle to the demolition of an attractive Victorian farmhouse whose garden 
has already recently provided sites for two brand new houses.

Page 45

Agenda Item 10

http://savvpspocl01.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk:9081/PlanningOfficerModule2/mainapplicationscreen?application=P19/S4261/FUL
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=ApplicationDetails&REF=P19/S4261/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The old farmhouse is part of our local architectural heritage, a building of interest, age 
and particular character. It also stands in the AONB, whose nature should be protected. 
2. The planning officer in his original advice stated that: In officers opinion the 
residential development of the site would fall within the definition of infill development, 
because it would form the redevelopment of an existing dwelling on a site that is closely 
surrounded by other buildings on all four sides. This statement is incorrect as the house 
backs on to open fields and also has no housing directly opposite (just a line of 
woodland, narrowing to where the road meets Common Lane). If this application were 
to be approved then the built landscape of this part of the village would show a row of 
five 21st century houses where there once stood just one Victorian farmhouse plus an 
open car parking area belonging to the pub. This village is characterised by its open 
spaces and natural field and garden gaps between buildings and this would constitute 
too much of an alteration to its natural character and appearance. In our objection we 
are therefore citing loss of character in the area and over-development of the plot.
We are also aware that some of the newest houses in the village have been converted 
wholly to holiday let use, thereby completely thwarting planning intentions to provide 
permanent homes for people who need them. If, therefore, this application should be 
approved we request that a condition be imposed to prevent the new houses being 
used as tourist accommodation rather than homes for village residents.

Conservation Officer – No objection to loss of farmhouse on heritage grounds

Forestry Officer – No objection subject to conditions

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objection subject to 
condition

Countryside Officer - No objection subject to conditions

SGN Plant Protection Team – No strong views

Local Residents – No representations received

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1

4.2

P18/S3379/PEM - Proposed residential development. - Pre-App Response on 
29/03/2019 

P15/S2278/FUL - Erection of a detached two-storey 3-bedroom dwelling and attached 
single garage to the north-east of the existing dwelling and a detached two-storey 4-
bedroom dwelling and detached carport to the south-west of the existing dwelling and 
formation of vehicular accesses from Harpsden Road. - Planning Permission on 
28/08/2015 

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy policies

CS1  -  Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSB1  -  Conservation and improvement of biodiversity
CSEN1  -  Landscape protection
CSEN3  -  Historic environment
CSH2 – Housing density
CSH4 – Meeting housing needs
CSM1  -  Transport
CSQ2  -  Sustainable design and construction
CSQ3  -  Design
CSR1  -  Housing in villages

Page 46

http://sav-intranet.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk/jsp/packages/planning/PAV_Summary.jsp?REF=P18/S3379/PEM
http://sav-intranet.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk/jsp/packages/planning/PA_Summary.jsp?REF=P15/S2278/FUL


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

CSS1  -  The Overall Strategy

5.2

5.3

5.4

South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies;
C4  -  Landscape setting of settlements
C6  -  Maintain & enhance biodiversity
C8  -  Adverse affect on protected species
C9  -  Loss of landscape features
D1  -  Principles of good design
D10  -  Waste Management
D2  -  Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
D4  -  Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
EP3  -  Adverse affect by external lighting
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
G5 – Making the best use of land
H4  -  Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

Emerging South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2034
On 10th October 2019 the Secretary of State for Housing Communities and Local 
Government issued a Holding Direction on the Council in relation to the emerging Local 
Plan 2034. The holding direction has been made under the provisions of Section 21A of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. This means that the emerging plan 
has 'no effect whilst the direction is in force', this is set out in section 21A(2) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents
South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 – Section 7 – Plots and Buildings
South Oxfordshire Landscape Assessment – Character Area 10
Chilterns Buildings Design Guide – Chapter 3

5.5 National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance
The policies within the Development Plan of relevance to this application are 
considered to be in general conformity with the provisions of the NPPF and NPPG and 
therefore this application can be determined against the relevant policies above.

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The planning issues that are relevant to this application are whether the development 

would:
 Be in accordance with the Council’s strategy for the distribution of housing;
 result in the loss of open space or view of public, environmental or ecological value;
 cause the loss of a building of heritage value or detract from the setting of the 

nearby listed building;
 be in keeping with the character and appearance of the surrounding area, including 

the Chilterns AONB;
 safeguard the living conditions of neighbouring residential occupiers and would 

provide suitable living conditions for future occupiers; 
 demonstrate an acceptable provision of off-street parking spaces for the resultant 

dwelling or other conditions prejudicial to highway safety; and
 give rise to any other material planning considerations

Page 47



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

6.2 Principle of Development
Within Appendix 4 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Binfield Heath is 
listed as a ‘smaller village’. Within such settlements Policy CSR1 of the SOCS allows 
for infill housing development up to the equivalent of 5-6 dwellings on sites of up to 0.2 
ha. Infill is defined as the filling of a small gap in an otherwise built-up frontage or on 
other sites within settlements where the site is closely surrounded by buildings and 
includes redevelopment proposals, which are considered on a case by case basis. The 
site has an area of about 0.1 hectares and it is located within the built-up confines of 
the settlement, in an otherwise built-up frontage. It is notable that this frontage includes 
three other dwellings (Acacia House, Mulberry Cottage and Pipkin Cottage) that have 
been granted planning permission when assessed against the criterion of Policy CSR1. 
Although the site area of Bournes Farmhouse was 0.27 hectares prior to the other 
dwellings being built, the 0.2 hectare limit does not apply to redevelopment proposals, 
where existing buildings are demolished. Notwithstanding the error in the pre-
application advice pointed out by Binfield Heath Parish Council (see para 3.1), for the 
reasons above, officers consider the redevelopment of the site with two dwellings would 
accord with the definition of infilling set out under Policy CSR1.

6.3 Loss of Open Space
Criterion (i) of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 requires that an important open space of 
public, environmental or ecological value is not lost, nor an important public view spoilt. 
The site is not accessible to the public. Although it is visible from the road, it has 
contained a dwelling and has formed part of a residential plot for many decades and is 
seen in the context of nearby dwellings. As such, the proposed dwellings on this site 
would not obstruct any significant public views. The Council’s Countryside Officer has 
confirmed that there would also be no adverse ecological implications arising from this 
proposal, subject to the imposition of planning conditions. On this basis, the proposal 
would be in accordance with the above criterion.

6.4

6.5

Heritage Impact
The SOCS Policy CSEN3 seeks to preserve or enhance the District's designated 
heritage assets, including conservation areas and listed buildings. The SOLP 2011 
Policy CON5 sets out the Council’s statutory duty to protect the setting of listed 
buildings. The site is not formally designated and the need for a heritage impact 
assessment was not anticipated. The Council’s Conservation Officer has advised that 
historic Ordnance Survey mapping indicated that the building was present in 1870 
which would accord with a general assessment of photographs which suggest a 
building date c.mid C19th. The plan form, Flemish brickwork, gauged brick lintels 
reinforce this view. Buildings of this age and date and of similar design and construction 
are numerous and widespread, not being specific to the local vernacular of the 
Chilterns. The building is not likely to meet the high bar for listing buildings of this date 
under Historic England Guidance.

Provision is made under the NPPF for the identification of building as non-designated 
heritage assets and for their heritage interest to be given some weight within the 
planning balance. The replacement of the original sash windows with UPVC has 
diminished some of its architectural value. The alteration to the building’s setting 
through infilling and the loss of associated farm buildings and outbuildings reduces the 
legibility of the building as a farmhouse. Having regard to the above, and to the Historic 
England guides for Local Listing, which act as a good benchmark for the identification 
of non-designated heritage assets, the Conservation Officer considers that the building 
is not of sufficient interest that demolition could be reasonably resisted. The building 
does not lie within a conservation area for which the preservation of character and 
appearance would be statutorily protected.

Page 48



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

6.6

6.7

6.8

Officers also consider that the building does not make a direct contribution to the setting 
and significance of The Bottle and Glass as a Grade II listed building or the reasons for 
that building’s listing. Officers are of the view that whilst the building may have some 
charm, it is not of sufficient heritage interest to be a constraint to development that 
would be required to be weighed in the planning balance.

Visual Impact
Criterion (ii) of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 requires that the design, height, scale and 
materials of the proposed development are in keeping with its surroundings and 
criterion (iii) requires that the character of the area is not adversely affected. Policies 
CSQ3 of the SOCS and D1 of the SOLP 2011 expand on this requirement in respect of 
ensuring good design. Policy CSEN1 of the SOCS seeks to protect landscape 
character. The proposed dwellings would be positioned at similar distances to the road 
as Bournes Farmhouse and the ridge heights would be comparable to the dwellings on 
either side. The scheme has been designed so as to retain the trees around the site 
boundaries, to the satisfaction of the Council’s Tree Officer, which would help to 
assimilate the development in with its surroundings and would ensure that the dwellings 
would not have any significant impact upon the wider Chilterns AONB landscape.

The plot sizes of the proposed dwellings would fit in with the surrounding density and 
grain of development in this part of the village and their scale and appearance would be 
appropriate. The design of the dwellings would broadly reflect the advice set out in 
Section 7 of the SODG 2016 concerning the use of traditional form and materials 
including red brick and flint, clay tiles and natural slate. In officers’ opinion they would 
contribute positively to the variety in appearance of dwellings in the locality. Plot 1 
would have a carport positioned in front of the dwelling. However, this would still be 
sufficiently set back from the street frontage, at a distance of about 9 metres, and would 
in any case be a modest structure with a hipped roof. There is a similar structure at 
Acacia House, to the south-west of the site. The retention of the boundary planting 
means that the carport in this position would not be unduly prominent in the street 
scene. In the light of the above assessment, the proposal would be in accordance with 
the above policies and guidance.

6.9 Neighbour Impact
Criterion (iv) of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 requires that there are no overriding 
amenity objections. Policy D4 of the SOLP 2011 requires that all new dwellings should 
be designed and laid out so as to secure a reasonable degree of privacy for the 
occupiers. The proposed dwellings would be set in from the side boundaries and each 
other by about 3-6 metres. Both Plots 1 & 2 would be broadly in line with the footprint of 
Acacia House and Mulberry Cottage and so would not result in loss of light or outlook to 
the main front and rear windows. The proposed first floor side windows of both 
proposed dwellings could be subject to an obscure glazing condition to prevent 
overlooking. The gardens serving the proposed dwellings would comfortably comply 
with the recommended minimum 100 square metre area for dwellings of this size. 
Based on this assessment, the proposal would accord the above policies.

6.10 Access and Parking
Criterion (iv) of Policy H4 of the SOLP 2011 also requires that there are no overriding 
highway objections. The Highway Liaison Officer is satisfied with the access and 
parking arrangements, subject to planning conditions, as there would be adequate 
parking space for dwellings of this size the existing access would provide sufficient 
visibility splays at the site frontage. On this basis, the proposal would comply with the 
above criterion.

Page 49



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

6.11

6.12

6.13

Other Material Planning Considerations
The proposed three and four-bedroom dwellings, would provide for the house types in 
greatest need across the District, in general conformity with the requirements of the 
Oxfordshire Strategic Housing Market Assessment April 2014. Binfield Heath Parish 
Council are concerned that the dwellings would be used as holiday lets rather than 
being made available for local people to buy or rent. However, as long as the dwellings 
would be occupied by family groups whom, during their stay, constitute a single 
household, it is unlikely that a material change of use would have occurred for which 
planning permission would be required. 

Officers consider that a condition to remove permitted development rights for 
extensions, outbuildings and hardstandings is necessary to enable the Council to 
exercise control over any future development, which could otherwise impact upon the 
retained trees, the character of the area or residential amenity.

Community Infrastructure Levy
The proposed dwellings are liable for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 15% of 
the CIL payment would go Binfield Heath Parish Council in the absence of an adopted 
Neighbourhood Plan. In this way, the development would contribute towards local 
infrastructure projects for the benefit of the village community.

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 The proposed development would be acceptable in principle, would not result in harm 

to the historic environment and would be in keeping with the character and appearance 
of the surrounding area, including the Chilterns AONB landscape. It would not detract 
from the living conditions of adjoining residents or be prejudicial to highway safety. 
Subject to the conditions below, it would be in accordance with Development Plan 
Policies, Supplementary Planning Guidance and Government Guidance.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
Grant Planning Permission subject to the following conditions:
1.  Commencement 3 yrs - Full Planning Permission
2.  Approved plans *
3.  No change in levels
4.  Schedule of materials required prior to foundations
5.  Obscure glazing *
6.  Withdrawal of Permitted Development Rights  
     (extensions/outbuildings/hardstandings) *
7.  Existing vehicular access retained*
8.  Parking & Manoeuvring Areas Retained *
9.  No Garage conversion into accommodation
10. Landscaping Scheme (including hardstandings and boundary treatment) prior 
      to foundations
11. Tree Protection to be implemented as agreed
12.  Ecological protection & mitigation (details required prior to commencement)
13.  Wildlife Protection (mitigation approved)
14. Highways Informatives

Author: Paul Lucas
Email: Planning@southoxon.gov.uk
Tel: 01235 422600

Page 50

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


Printed on 28/11/2019 10:05:56
   for BCP

This map is reproduced from Ordance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery Office Crown copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings
South Oxfordshire District Council / 100018668 / 2019

Reference:P19/S4261/FUL

Appendix A

Page 51

Agenda Item 10P19-S4261-FUL



Appendix B

P
age 52



P
age 53



P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



P
age 57

sav_turnerl
Distance Measurement
4.99 m

sav_turnerl_1
Area Measurement
55.63 sq m

sav_turnerl_2
Area Measurement
75.88 sq m

sav_turnerl_3
Area Measurement
78.26 sq m



Page 58



P
age 59



P
age 60



PLOT 1 PLOT 2

Recently erected 1.8m high

closeboarded fence to boundary

Recently erected 1.8m high

closeboarded fence to

boundary

0 Metres 5 10 20

Scale: 1:200 @ A1

15

20.97

20.83

20.42

20.67

20.42

20.09

19.94

19.81

19.74

19.60

19.43

19.16

18.92

18.70

18.45

18.58

18.64

18.68

18.72

18.78

19.14

18.64

18.81

18.85

18.86

18.88

18.91

19.03

19.27

19.42

19.56

19.82

20.01

20.16

20.44

20.83

21.13

21.04

20.74

20.79

20.49

20.13

19.99

19.97

19.92

19.94

19.79

19.50

19.13

18.81

18.70

18.56

19.32

19.25

19.29

19.40

19.48
19.69

19.78

19.76

19.71

19.74

19.90

19.78

19.81 19.73

19.74

19.74

19.71

19.68

19.69

19.68

19.72

19.82

19.86

19.92

19.94

20.06

20.22

20.38

20.58

20.66

20.76

20.87

20.89

20.97

21.05

20.89

21.06

22.25

27.03

25.20

26.25

25.17

25.04

19.86

23.06

21.92

20.68

20.59

20.34

20.25

18.44

18.65

18.71

18.64

18.43

18.80

18.46

18.54

18.86

18.63

18.56

18.73

18.59

18.47

18.05

19.54

19.51

19.73

19.72

19.72

19.73

19.72

19.71

19.65

19.83

19.92

19.65

19.63

19.59

19.62

19.57

19.56

19.50

19.49

19.48

19.46

19.54

19.60

19.65

19.76

19.77

19.6919.77

19.82

19.65

19.73

19.80

19.64

19.71

19.66

19.73

19.83

19.85

19.95

19.86

19.89

19.89

19.88

19.78

19.73

19.70

19.74

19.73

19.66

19.79

19.74

19.75

19.74

19.70

20.21

19.53

1
9
.
3
6

1
9
.
2
8

1
9
.
3
4

2
1
.
1
9

1
9
.
3
3

1
9
.
1
6

1
9
.
2
5

1
9
.
3
3

1

9

.
0

9

1

9

.
0

6

1
9
.
1
9

19.47

19.24

19.48 19.41

18.69

19.94

18.77

18.76

18.66

18.54

18.44

18.34

18.50

18.63

18.90

19.09

19.39

19.37

19.18

18.80

18.66

18.36

19.77

19.79

19.66

19.49

19.47

18.52

18.42

18.37

18.38

18.32

18.40

18.51

18.54

18.80

19.11

19.97

19.96

19.80

EDP

Sign

Post

W

o
o
d
e
n

P

o
s
t
 
&

 
W

i
r
e
 
F

e
n
c
e

C

e

n

t
r
e

 
L

i
n

e

O

f
 
Y

e

w

 
H

e

d

g

e

18.45

18.37

18.45

19.53

19.72

19.73

19.73

19.70

19.69

19.67

19.72

19.73

19.78

19.72

19.71

19.70

19.66

19.67

19.66

19.65

19.58

19.67

19.84

19.68

19.54

19.62

19.67

19.90

19.97

19.81

20.09

20.24

23.75

18.95

19.17

19.27

19.46

19.55

19.70

19.57

19.67

19.64

19.71

19.83

19.83
19.84

19.83

19.81

19.9219.92

19.42

19.61

19.53

19.48

19.41

19.70

19.83

19.61

19.53

19.30

19.14

19.13

19.12

19.07

18.99

19.02

18.82

18.88

19.73

19.96

20.27

20.45

20.56

20.63

20.45

19.74

19.81

20.24

18.67

18.71

18.76

27.03

27.89

19.45

19.44

19.38

19.24

19.24

19.36

19.35

19.58

19.68

19.86

19.19

19.18

19.17

19.21

19.29

19.33

19.14

19.09

19.10

18.97

18.91

1
8
.
6
8

18.72

18.83

18.88

18.92

19.02

1
8
.
9
8

1
8
.
9
9

19.01

18.98

18.98

24.32

25.35

22.34

19.67

19.47

19.14

18.85

19.04

18.92

18.82

18.90

18.96

18.93

18.83

18.80

1

8

.
7

8

18.74

18.80

18.85

18.99

19.07

19.23

19.54

19.59

19.62

19.58

19.39

19.29 19.02

19.00

19.02

18.85

19.07

19.20

19.26

19.29

19.30
19.23

19.25

19.25

19.20

19.16

21.89

21.26

18.97

Wooden Decking

Grass

Lawn

Grass

Lawn

Grass

Lawn

Grass

Lawn

Grass

Lawn

Rockery

End Of Metal

Railings

Start Of Metal

Railings

Alder

Sapling's

EDP

B

T
M

H

27.03

Ridge Level

Eave Level

25.20

Ridge Level

26.25

Eave Level

21.92

Ridge Level

23.06

Threshold

19.92

Ridge Level

25.29

Ridge Level

25.35

Chimney

27.89

Eave Level

25.15

Bournes Farmhouse

Arable Field

H

a

r
p

s
d

e

n

 
 
 
R

o

a

d

Compost

Heap

B

T
M

H

EDP

G

r
a

n

it
e

S

e

t
t
s

Y

e

w

H

e

d

g

e

Eave Level

22.34

Conc

Threshold

19.86

Threshold

19.92

Ridge Level

27.03

Gravel

D

w

a
r
f
 
B

r
i
c
k

W

a
l
l
 
0
.
3
5
m

D

w

a
r
f
 
B

r
i
c
k

W

a
l
l
 
0
.
3
5
m

C

e
n
t
e
r
 
L
in

e
 
O

f
 
O

ld
 
H

e
d
g
e

Sapling

Sapling

Sapling

Sapling

Sapling

O

l
d

 
D

i
t
c

h

Gravel

Gravel

Ridge Level

21.89

Eave Level

21.26

P

o
s
t
 
&

 
R

a
il 

F
e
n
c
e

1
.
2
m

Sapling

Grass

W

h

i
t
e

L

i
n

e

K

e

r

b

E
d
g
e
 O

f

T
a
r
m

a
c
 R

o
a
d

E
d
g
e
 O

f

T
a
r
m

a
c
 R

o
a
d

G

r
a
s
s
 V

e
r
g
e

D

il
a
p
id

a
t
e
d
 
W

ir
e
 
F

e
n
c
e

G

r
a
s
s
 V

e
r
g
e

C

e

n

t
e

r
 
L

i
n

e

 
O

f
 
M

i
x

e

d

 
H

e

d

g

e

Grass

Grass

Grass

B
o
t
o
m

 
O

f

B
o
t
o
m

 
O

f

G
r
a
s
s
 
B

a
n
k

T
o
p
 
O

f

W
o
o
d
e
n
 P

o
s
t &

 R
a
il

F
e
n
c
e
 1

.2
m

Planter

Planter

Planter

Lawn

Grass

Lawn

Grass

Shed

B

r
i
c

k

W

a

l
l

B

r
i
c
k

W

a

l
l

Arable Field

Arable Field

Pebles

Pebles

Gravel

Paved

step

s
t
e
p

step

C

a

b

l
e

 

L

e

v

e

l
 

2

5

.

0

4

C

a

b

l

e

 

L

e

v

e

l

 

2

4

.

3

2

Gravel

Paved

Ø150 aprox

WSV

T6

T28

T7

T22

T23

T24

T25
G29

G46

Tree No

Species Category

RPA Radius Tree Works

All retained

trees &

hedges

Carry out safety check and lift

over site to 3-4m as necessary.

T6 False acacia B 9.3 -

T7

Japanese

cedar

C 2.4 -

T22 Hazel C 4.5 -

T23

Holly

C 5.4 -

T24

Sycamore

C 3.0 -

T25

Apple

C 2.4 -

T28

Sycamore

B 7.8 -

G29 Hazel C 6.0 -

G46

Laurel, yew

C 1.2 -

Proposed layout

Protective barrier/fencing

TX

BS category B

Estimated tree positions not included on original

land survey and/or adjusted crown spreads

TX

BS category C

Trees of moderate quality

Trees of low quality

Root protection area (RPA) boundaries for

category B trees

Root protection area (RPA) boundaries for

category C trees

Construction exclusion zone (CEZ)

Tree schedule

www.barrelltreecare.co.uk

Provided Plan Refs: BF-1A.DWG & 1904 2.10

Permission is granted to scale from this drawing

for Local Authority Planning Approval purposes

relating to tree protection measures only.   Where

applicable this drawing is to be read in conjunction

with the arboricultural report. This drawing is the

copyright of  Barrell Tree Consultancy 2019.

This drawing to be reproduced in colour only.

Barrell Plan Ref: 15097-BT2

c

Tree protection plan

Location of trees, categorisation & protection/management

proposals at Bournes Farmhouse, Harpsden Road, Binfield

Heath, Henley-on-Thames

Monitoring tree protection
Always:

SGN 1

ü have a pre-commencement meeting
with the tree consultant before
development starts

ü use the tree consultant to regularly
check that protection remains fit for
purpose

ü use the tree consultant to supervise
work in RPAs

ü keep a written record of supervision

ü install protection before development
starts

ü make sure protection is fit for
purpose, i.e. it prevents damage to
trees and soil

ü keep protection in place until there is
no risk to trees

ü get written permission to move or
remove any protection

Fencing protected trees
Always:

SGN 2

More detailed guidance on each Site Guidance Note (SGN) can be found in a printed hard copy
compilation of all the SGNs, issued to the Site Manager at the pre-commencement site meeting
(Note:  This should be retained on site throughout the duration of works).  Additionally, an electronic
pdf compilation of all the SGNs, was submitted with this drawing to the local planning authority and
the client.  Alternatively, a pdf of each SGN can be downloaded by:
1. clicking the image links in the electronic pdf version of this plan;
2. holding a mobile phone QR (Quick Response) code reader over the QR code in the paper version of

this plan;  or,
3. visiting our website at https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance.

How to use plan

Existing gravel driveway within

outer edge of RPA will not be

detrimentally affected by the

proposals.

Minor encroachment into outer edge

of RPA for the installation of the new

car barn will not detrimentally impact

on the retained trees.

P
age 61

https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

APPLICATION NO. P20/S0092/O
APPLICATION TYPE OUTLINE
REGISTERED 9.1.2020
PARISH THAME
WARD MEMBER(S) Pieter-Paul Barker

Kate Gregory
David Bretherton

APPLICANT Mr & Mrs M and G Bostel
SITE 69 Park Street Thame, OX9 3HU
PROPOSAL Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 3 

three-bedroom two-storey dwellings with parking 
and amenity space.

OFFICER Simon Kitson

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This application is referred to planning committee as the officer’s recommendation of 

approval conflicts with the views of the Town Council.

1.2 The site (identified on the map attached at Appendix A) is located within the built-up 
limits of Thame, on the south-western side of Park Street adjacent to John Hampden 
primary school. The site lies outside but is bounded on three sides by the designated 
conservation area of Thame.

1.3 The site is currently in retail use. There is a single residential flat at first floor. To the 
north-west of the site, there is a detached garage building together with an area of 
hardstanding, apparently used for commercial and customer vehicle parking. The site 
is within a predominantly residential area and within easy walking distance of the town 
centre.

1.4 In 2014, outline planning permission was granted for the erection of three dwellings 
with access and layout. Appearance, landscaping and scale were reserved matters for 
further approval (P14/S2511/O). In 2017, the Planning Committee granted approval 
for an identical scheme prior to the expiry of the previous consent (P17/S0080/O). 

1.5 Condition 1 of the 2017 permission states that the consent expires on 7th April 2020, 
unless the subsequent reserved matters are submitted before this date. The 
subsequent approval of reserved matters would extend the expiry date by a further 2 
years. Copies of the previous decisions are attached at Appendix B.

2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 As detailed in the application submission, this proposal seeks outline consent for the 

same scheme previously approved, in effect extending the expiry date on the 
permission for a further three year period. All submitted plans and application details 
are identical to the previous submission.

2.2 A copy of the proposed plans is attached as Appendix C. The application is 
accompanied by a planning statement which can be viewed online at 
www.southoxon.gov.uk

Page 63

Agenda Item 11

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P20/S0092/O
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1

3.2

3.3

Thame Town Council – Objection
1. Dangerous access onto the highway
2. Proximity to entrance to primary school
3. Loss of retail units and employment, particularly in the light of around 400 newly 

built homes within 500 metres of the site.

Thame Conservation Area Advisory Committee – Support
 This will be an improvement to the street scene in that area. It is pleasing to 

note that there will be parking and bin storage areas.

John Hampden Primary School – No objection but comments received:
 Please note the dropping off (8.15 and 9am) and picking up times (3 to 3.30pm) 

of the school as parking is so restricted along Park Street that any deliveries 
during these times would cause a major disruption.

 Another thing to consider is the parking arrangements for site workmen. We 
have very limited parking on site and could not accommodate additional work 
vehicles. Also Park Street is double yellow lines and parking is not permitted on 
the street.

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
4.1 P17/S0080/O - Approved (07/04/2017)

Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 3 three-bedroom two-storey dwellings 
with parking and amenity space.

P14/S2511/O - Approved (29/10/2014)
Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 3 three-bedroom two storey dwellings 
with parking and amenity space.

P75/N0143 - Approved (30/04/1975)
Division of existing shop into two (one ironmongery, one off-set duplicating, plan 
printing and photocopies)

P73/M0541 - Approved (20/06/1973)
Extension to form flat above existing shop.

P69/M0153 - Approved (10/04/1969)
Erection of 2 flats. Alteration & extension of existing showroom, garage, & workshop. 
Access to be improved.

P64/M0013 - Approved (22/01/1964)
Internal alterations and conversion of front showroom into offices.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE
5.1 Thame Neighbourhood Plan (TNP) Policies;

H5 Windfall sites
H6 Design
WS12 Retain existing employment land 
GA6 New development to provide parking on site for occupants and visitors
ESDQ11 Sustainable Urban Drainage
ESDQ16 The site and its surroundings
ESDQ17 The character of the town as a whole
ESDQ18 Sense of place
ESDQ19 Design and Access Statement

Page 64

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P17/S0080/O
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P14/S2511/O
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P75/N0143
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P73/M0541
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P69/M0153
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/ccm/planning/ApplicationDetails.jsp?REF=P64/M0013


South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

ESDQ26 Three-dimensional qualities
ESDQ27 Design in the ‘forgotten’ elements 
ESDQ28 Private outdoor space
ESDQ29 Car parking

5.2 South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) policies;

CSTHA1 - The Strategy for Thame
CSEN3 - Historic environment
CS1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSQ3 - Design
CSH4  -  Meeting housing needs

5.3 South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP) policies;

CON7  -  Proposals in a conservation area
D3  -  Outdoor amenity area
E6  -  Loss of employment uses
G2  -  Protect district from adverse development
H4  -  Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1  -  Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2  -  Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.4 Emerging Local Plan 2034

On 10 October 2019 the Secretary of State for Housing Communities and Local 
Government issued a Holding Direction on the Council in relation to the emerging Local 
Plan 2034. The holding direction has been made under the provisions of Section 21A of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.This means that the emerging plan 
has 'no effect whilst the direction is in force', this is set out in section 21A(2) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. The emerging Local Plan holds no 
weight at present.

5.5 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016 (SODG 2016)

5.6 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 The main issues to be considered in the determination of this planning application are:

1. The principle of the development
2. The impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area
3. The impact on neighbouring properties
4. The impact on parking provision/highway safety
5.  Provision of adequate amenity space

Page 65



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

Principle

6.2 The principle of this development has been supported by the Planning Committee on 
two previous occasions. There have been no relevant changes to the relevant policies 
in the Development Plan or national policy prior to the submission of this application.

6.3 Whilst the Town Council raise objection to the loss of the retail properties, the site is a 
considerable distance outside the defined primary and secondary retail frontages of the 
town. As such, there are no policies within the Thame NP which prevent this form of 
change of use. Furthermore, as the land is not lawfully within a B1, B2 or B8 use Class, 
TNP Policy WS12 does not apply and there is no requirement within the Development 
Plan for the applicants to justify this proposal through the submission of a viability 
appraisal or marketing information.   

6.4 It remains the case that Policy CSTHA1 of the SOCS and TNP Policy H5 allow housing 
on suitable infill and redevelopment sites, subject to compliance with other 
Development Plan policies. This site lies within the built up limits of Thame in an area 
where the predominant land uses are residential and the principle of the redevelopment 
of the site is acceptable.

Impact on the character and appearance of the site and the surrounding 
conservation area

6.5 SOLP Policy H4 requires that an important open space of public, environmental or 
ecological value is not lost, nor an important public view spoilt. The site is occupied by 
unattractive buildings and a parking area. The site has no particular environmental or 
ecological value and there are no important views across the site.

6.6 Although the site lies outside the Thame conservation area, it is bound on three sides 
by it. Policy CON7 of the SOLP seeks to resist proposals for development outside a 
conservation area which would have a harmful effect on its setting. The existing 
building and parking area are unattractive and do not contribute positively to the 
character of the surrounding conservation area. The redevelopment of this site for 3 
modest dwellings and associated parking provides an opportunity to enhance the 
character and appearance of the area, provided that an appropriate design is brought 
forward, taking cues from the local vernacular. Details of design and materials are not 
to be considered at this outline stage. However, good quality materials and a traditional 
dwelling design, as shown on the illustrative elevations, are likely to be an appropriate 
response to the wider historic environment.   

6.7 Policies D1 and H4 of the SOLP, Policy CSQ3 of the SOCS and the design objectives 
of the TNP emphasise the requirement for development proposals to be in keeping with 
the pattern of development and character of the local surroundings. Although detailed 
designs are reserved for later approval, the site plan demonstrates that 3 dwellings of 
an appropriate scale, design and appearance could be achieved on this site. There 
would be sufficient space around the proposed buildings so that the development would 
not appear cramped within the context of the surrounding area.

Residential Amenity

6.8 There have been no changes to the proposed site layout since the previous approval 
and Section 7 of the new 2016 Design Guide sets out the same recommended private 
amenity space standards as the previous 2008 document. 

Page 66



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

6.9 Although the private amenity spaces continue to fall short of the generic 100 sq.m 
recommendation, both the SODG and SOLP Policy D3 emphasise the need for a 
flexible approach, taking account of the surrounding context. The need for a Thame-
specific appraisal of development proposals is also a recurring theme within the TNP’s 
design objectives and policies. In this particular case, the development would be in the 
town centre within 94m of a recreational ground and part of a walkable neighbourhood. 
There are also numerous examples within the locality of dwellings, both traditional and 
modern having rear gardens significantly smaller than 100sqm – for example, no 60 
Park Street -32sqm, No 82 -47sqm and 16 Park Terrace 42sqm. As such, the 
established character of this part of Thame includes many dwellings with small rear 
gardens. This aspect of the proposal is considered acceptable and the density of 
housing proposed would not adversely impact upon the overall character of the area.  

Neighbouring amenity

6.10 As was the case at the time of the 2017 application, the adjacent site to the south has 
had a series of approvals and amendments for a housing scheme (P15/S2782/FUL -
P17/S24470/NM) and this will affect the relationship with the dwellings at the 
application site. However, it is a significant material planning consideration that the 
extant outline permission granted consent for the current proposed layout and that this 
permission predated the Thame Service Station application. As the approved layout 
can be implemented regardless of the current site circumstances, provided that 
reserved matters are submitted by April, officers do not consider that the council can 
reasonably refuse planning permission now for an identical scheme. 

6.11 Given the position of the proposed buildings, to the north of the nearest neighbouring 
properties, officers consider that the development would not result in any adverse 
neighbour impact in terms of loss of daylight or sunlight. With regards to overlooking, it 
is acknowledged that there would be some visibility of the currently proposed gardens 
from the north-west facing windows of the dwellings at 12-14 Seymour Court. As 
landscaping remains a matter reserved for future approval, officers anticipate that some 
form of boundary screening is likely to be required in order to mitigate reduced 
standards of privacy to the gardens at the application properties. The development 
would otherwise have an acceptable impact on existing and future occupiers of the 
neighbouring properties as required by SOLP Policies H4 and D4.

Highway safety

6.12 The previous outline approval granted consent for the same access arrangements. 
Drawing 01a shows each dwelling with its own vehicular access directly off Park Street 
and off-street parking. 

6.13 The Local Highways Authority (LHA) raised no objection to this scheme on either of the 
previous occasions, subject to conditions. The last application was approved after the 
major housing schemes referenced by the Town Council. Given that the identical 
approved scheme is still extant, officers have not sought further advice from the LHA on 
this matter. 

7.0 CONCLUSION
7.1 Officers maintain that the principle of residential development continues to be 

acceptable within this sustainable town centre site. The application is in outline only 
and the submitted details demonstrate that the layout of the development is acceptable 
and that a development of an appropriate scale and design could be accommodated 
within the plots without causing material harm to the character of the area or residential 

Page 67



South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 26 February 2020

amenity. The impact upon highway safety would be identical to the extant scheme 
which was deemed to be acceptable by the Local Highways Authority. 

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
Grant Outline Planning Permission, subject to the following conditions:

 That the development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later 
than whichever is the later of the following dates (a) the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission; or (b) the expiration of two years from the final 
approval of the reserved matters, or in the case of approval on different dates, 
the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.

 In the case of any reserved matter, application for approval must be made not 
later than the expiration of 3 years beginning with the date of the grant of outline 
planning permission.

 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, the parking 
and turning areas shall be provided in accordance with drawing no.01a and 
shall be constructed, laid out, surfaced, drained and completed to be compliant 
with sustainable drainage (SuDS) principles, and shall be retained unobstructed 
except for the parking of vehicles associated with the development at all times.

 Prior to the first occupation of the development vision splays measuring 2.0 
metres by 2.0 metres shall be provided to each side of the access and the vision 
splays shall not be obstructed by any object, structure, planting or other material 
with a height exceeding or growing above 0.6 metres as measured from 
carriageway level

 The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until foul and surface 
water drainage works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.

 Prior to the commencement of any site works (including demolition or site 
clearance) an arboricultural method statement shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

Author: Simon Kitson
Email: Planning@southoxon.gov.uk
Tel: 01235 422600

 

Page 68

mailto:Planning@southoxon.gov.uk


Appendix A

Page 69

Agenda Item 11P20-S0092-O



www.southoxon.gov.uk page 1 / 7

PLANNING

Mr & Mrs Bostel
c/o Ian Slater Architectural Design
The Old Saracen's Head
7 Buttermarket
THAME
OX9 3EW

OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION

South Oxfordshire District Council hereby gives notice that outline planning
permission is GRANTED for the carrying out of the development referred to above
strictly in accordance with the description, plans and specifications contained in the
application (as varied by any amendments as referred to above) subject to the
following condition(s) : 

That the development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later
than whichever is the later of the following dates:

(a) the expiration of three years from the date of this permission; or
(b) the expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters,
or in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such
matter to be approved.

Reason: By virtue of Section 91 to 95 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

in the case of any reserved matter, application for approval must be made not
later than the expiration of 3 years beginning with the date of the grant of

1.

2.

Planning Decision

Application No : P14/S2511/O                

Application proposal, including any amendments :
Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 3 three-bedroom two storey
dwellings with parking and amenity space.

Site Location : 69 Park Street Thame OX9 3HU

P14/S2511/O

Appendix B

Page 70



page 2 / 7

P14/S2511/O

outline planning permission.

Reason: By virtue of Sections 91 to 95 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

Prior to the first occupation of the development, car parking spaces shall be
provided within the curtilage of the site so that motor vehicles may enter and
park off of the highway. the parking areas shall be constructed, laid out,
surfaced, drained and completed in strict accordance with specificatin details to
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to
the commencement of devleopment. The car parking areas shall be retained
unobstructed except for the parking and manoeuvring of motor vehicles at all
times.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure the provision of off-
street car parking in accordance with Policies T1 and T2 of the South
Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

NB: For the works in the highway (crossover) a separate permission is required
from the Local Highway Authority. Pleae contact the Licensing and Streetworks
Administration Team prior to the commencement of works - TEL 0843 10 1111.
For the avoidance of doubt: The details of this dropped crossover shall confirm
to a transition kerb construction and not include a radius. This is in the interests
of pedestrian convenience, which is better served by transition kerbs which do
not require the need to drop down and raise up a steeped kerb crossover.

Cycle parking facilities shall be provided prior to the occupation of the
development hereby approved, in accordance with details to be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to the
commencement of development.  

Reason: To encourage the use of cycles as a means of transport in accordance
with Policy T2 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

The dwelling(s) hereby approved shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for
Sustainable Homes (or any such equivalent national measure of sustainability
for house design which replaces that scheme).  No dwelling shall be occupied
until a final Code Certificate has been issued for it certifying that Code Level 4
(or any such equivalent national measure of sustainability for house design
which replaces that scheme) has been achieved.

Reason: To ensure high standards of sustainable design and construction in
accordance with Policy CSQ2 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2027.

Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority 'LPA', development
other than that required to be carried out as part of an approved remediation

3.

4.

5.

6.

Page 71



page 3 / 7

P14/S2511/O

scheme must not commence until phases i) to iv) have been complied with, or
further works have been deemed unnecessary as a result of conclusions based
on risk assessments during phases i), ii) or iii), and this has been agreed upon
in writing by the LPA.  

Document(s) detailing the works undertaken in each phase must be submitted
to and approved by the LPA in writing before any other phase commences, and
before occupation of any building in relation to phase v).  All phases of
investigation must be designed and conducted in accordance with DEFRA and
the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination, CLR 11.

i) A South Oxfordshire District Council contaminated land statement
questionnaire.
ii) A preliminary risk assessment, including a site walkover and conceptual site
model detailing all potential contaminants, sources and receptors.
iii) An intrusive site investigation to assess the type, nature, extent and risk(s) of
any contamination identified in ii), whether or not it originates on site.  It is
recommended that the LPA are consulted on proposals.
iv) A detailed remediation scheme, to bring the site to a condition suitable for
the intended use.  The scheme shall include all works to be undertaken,
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, a timetable of works
and site management procedures.  The scheme shall also ensure that after
remediation the site will not qualify as Contaminated Land under Part 2A
Environmental Protection Act 1990.
v) Validation of the remediation scheme demonstrating the effectiveness of the
remediation approved in iv).

If contamination is found during the course of development that was not
previously identified, the development must be halted on that part of the site to
the extent specified by the LPA and until the LPA are satisfied that all
necessary phases above have been undertaken.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to future users of the
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and
other offsite receptors in accordance with Policy EP8 of the South Oxfordshire
Local Plan 2011.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until surface water
drainage works have been carried out in accordance with details that have
been first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:  To prevent pollution and flooding in accordance with Policies EP1,
EP4 and EP6 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

7.

Page 72



page 4 / 7

P14/S2511/O

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until foul drainage
works have been carried out in accordance with details that have been first
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To prevent pollution in accordance with Policy EP1 of the South
Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

Prior to the commencement of any site works (including demolition or site
clearance) an arboricultural method statement shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to show that any mature
trees close to the boundary of the site shall not be harmed by the development
hereby approved and that a protected area shall be designated for these trees
which  shall be protected in accordance with a scheme which complies with the
current edition of BS 5837: "Trees in relation to design, demolition and
construction" that shall first have been submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed measures shall be kept in place
during the entire course of development.

Reason: To safeguard trees which are visually important in accordance with
Policy CSQ3 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2027 and Policies G2, C9
and D1 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

Your attention is drawn to the need to have regard to the requirements of UK
and European legislation related to the protection of certain wild plants and
animals. Approval under that legislation will be required and a licence may be
necessary if bats are affected by the development. If bats are discovered you
must be aware that to proceed with the development without seeking advice
from Natural England could result in prosecution

The above permission/consent may contain pre-conditions, which require
specific matters to be approved by the Local Planning Authority before a
specified stage in the development occurs.  This means that a lawful
commencement of the approved development/works cannot be made until the
particular requirements of the pre-condition(s) have been met.  Please read the
letter attached to the decision notice for further information.

This approval is specific to the details of the development as shown on the
approved plans and other associated documentation.  Unless otherwise agreed
by the Council any departure from the approved plans will constitute
unauthorised development and may be liable to enforcement action.  As such
the Council must be advised in writing of any proposed variations from the
approved plans and other associated documentation at the earliest stage
possible.  A decision will then be made as to whether the changes can be dealt
with as a minor revision to the approved details or whether a revised application
is required.

8.

9.

NB:

NB:

NB:

Page 73



page 5 / 7

P14/S2511/O

Head of Planning
29th October 2014

The principle of residential development is acceptable in this town centre site. The
application is in outline only and the submitted details demonstrate that the layout of
the development is acceptable and that a development of an appropriate scale and
design could be accommodated at the site. The County Highway Authority has not
raised an objection to the access which is considered to comply with the
requirements of the NPPF. This proposal would provide 3 small units of
accommodation in a very sustainable location.

Reason for Decision 

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework the Council takes a positive and proactive approach to development
proposals. The Planning Service works with applicants/agents in a positive and
proactive manner by offering a pre-application advice service and by advising
applicants/agents of issues that arise during the processing of their application and
where possible suggesting solutions to problems.

Note : A more detailed explanation is available in the officer's report, available in the
application case file.

Proposals in a conservation area
Affordable housing
Meeting housing needs
Outdoor amenity area
Loss of employment uses
Protect district from adverse development
Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

CON7
CSH3
CSH4
D3
E6
G2
H4
T1
T2

Key Policies 
1

Note : The full wording of the above policies are available on our website or in the
local plan documents, at our offices.

Page 74



page 6 / 7

P14/S2511/O

STATUTORY INFORMATIVE

Appeals to the Secretary of State

If you are aggrieved by the decision of your local planning authority to refuse
permission for the proposed development or to grant it subject to conditions, then
you can appeal to the Secretary of State for the Environment under sections 78 and
79 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

If you want to appeal, then you must do so within six months of the date of this
notice, using a form which you can get from :

The Planning Inspectorate
Customer Support Unit
Temple Quay House
2 The Square
Temple Quay
Bristol
BS1 6PN
Telephone : 0303 444 5000
www.planningportal.gov.uk
email: enquiries@pins.gsi.gov.uk.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but
he will not normally be prepared to use this power unless there are special
circumstances which excuse the delay in giving notice of appeal.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if it seems to him that the local
planning authority could not have granted planning permission for the proposed
development or could not have granted it without the conditions it imposed, having
regard to the statutory requirements, to the provisions of the development order and
to any directions given under the order.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely
because the local planning authority based its decision on a direction given by him.

Purchase Notice

If either the local planning authority or the Secretary of State for the Environment
refuses permission to develop land or grants its subject to conditions, the owner may
claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial use in its existing
state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted.

In these circumstances, the owner may serve a purchase notice on the Council

Page 75



page 7 / 7

P14/S2511/O

(District Council, London Borough Council or Common Council of the City of London)
in whose area the land is situated.  This notice will require the Council to purchase
his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part VI, Chapter 1 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Compensation

In certain circumstances compensation may be claimed from the local planning
authority if permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of
State on appeal or on reference of the application to him.

These circumstances are set out in sections 114 and related provisions of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Planning Portal contains a wide range of helpful planning-related guidance and
services. You may wish to view their website (www.planningportal.gov.uk). 

Page 76



www.southoxon.gov.uk page 1 / 7

PLANNING

Mr & Mrs M and G Bostel
c/o JCPC Ltd
5 Buttermarket
Thame
OX9 3EW

PLANNING PERMISSION

South Oxfordshire District Council hereby gives notice that planning permission is
GRANTED for the carrying out of the development referred to above strictly in
accordance with the description, plans and specifications contained in the application
(as varied by any amendments as referred to above) subject to the following
condition(s) : 

That the development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later
than whichever is the later of the following dates:

(a) the expiration of three years from the date of this permission; or
(b) the expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters,
or in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such
matter to be approved.

Reason: By virtue of Section 91 to 95 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

in the case of any reserved matter, application for approval must be made not
later than the expiration of 3 years beginning with the date of the grant of
outline planning permission.

1.

2.

Planning Decision

Application No : P17/S0080/O                

Application proposal, including any amendments :
Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 3 three-bedroom two-storey
dwellings with parking and amenity space.

Site Location : 69 Park Street THAME OX9 3HU

P17/S0080/O

Page 77



page 2 / 7

P17/S0080/O

Reason: By virtue of Sections 91 to 95 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

Prior to the first occupation of the development, car parking spaces shall be
provided within the curtilage of the site so that motor vehicles may enter and
park off of the highway. the parking areas shall be constructed, laid out,
surfaced, drained and completed in strict accordance with specific details to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of devleopment. The car parking areas shall be retained
unobstructed except for the parking and manoeuvring of motor vehicles at all
times.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure the provision of off-
street car parking in accordance with Policies T1 and T2 of the South
Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

NB: For the works in the highway (crossover) a separate permission is required
from the Local Highway Authority. Please contact the Licensing and
Streetworks Administration Team prior to the commencement of works - TEL
0843 10 1111. For the avoidance of doubt: The details of this dropped
crossover shall confirm to a transition kerb construction and not include a
radius. This is in the interests of pedestrian convenience, which is better served
by transition kerbs which do not require the need to drop down and raise up a
steeped kerb crossover.

Cycle parking facilities shall be provided prior to the occupation of the
development hereby approved, in accordance with details to be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to the
commencement of development.  

Reason: To encourage the use of cycles as a means of transport in accordance
with Policy T2 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority 'LPA', development
other than that required to be carried out as part of an approved remediation
scheme must not commence until phases i) to iv) have been complied with, or
further works have been deemed unnecessary as a result of conclusions based
on risk assessments during phases i) or ii), and this has been agreed upon in
writing by the LPA.  

Document(s) detailing the works undertaken in each phase must be submitted
to and approved by the LPA in writing before any other phase commences, and
before occupation of any building in relation to phase iv).  All phases of
investigation must be designed and conducted in accordance with DEFRA and
the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land

3.

4.

5.

Page 78



page 3 / 7

P17/S0080/O

Contamination, CLR 11.

i) A preliminary risk assessment, including a site walkover and conceptual site
model detailing all potential contaminants, sources and receptors.
ii) An intrusive site investigation to assess the type, nature, extent and risk(s) of
any contamination identified in ii), whether or not it originates on site.  It is
recommended that the LPA are consulted on proposals.
iii) A detailed remediation scheme, to bring the site to a condition suitable for
the intended use.  The scheme shall include all works to be undertaken,
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, a timetable of works
and site management procedures.  The scheme shall also ensure that after
remediation the site will not qualify as Contaminated Land under Part 2A
Environmental Protection Act 1990.
iv) Validation of the remediation scheme demonstrating the effectiveness of the
remediation approved in iv).

If contamination is found during the course of development that was not
previously identified, the development must be halted on that part of the site to
the extent specified by the LPA and until the LPA are satisfied that all
necessary phases above have been undertaken.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to future users of the
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and
other offsite receptors in accordance with policy EP8 of the South Oxfordshire
Local Plan 2011.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until surface water
drainage works have been carried out in accordance with details that have
been first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:  To prevent pollution and flooding in accordance with Policies EP1,
EP4 and EP6 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until foul drainage
works have been carried out in accordance with details that have been first
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To prevent pollution in accordance with Policy EP1 of the South
Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

Prior to the commencement of any site works (including demolition or site
clearance) an arboricultural method statement shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to show that any mature
trees close to the boundary of the site shall not be harmed by the development

6.

7.

8.

Page 79



page 4 / 7

P17/S0080/O

hereby approved and that a protected area shall be designated for these trees
which  shall be protected in accordance with a scheme which complies with the
current edition of BS 5837: "Trees in relation to design, demolition and
construction" that shall first have been submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed measures shall be kept in place
during the entire course of development.

Reason: To safeguard trees which are visually important in accordance with
Policy CSQ3 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2027 and Policies G2, C9
and D1 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011.

Your attention is drawn to the need to have regard to the requirements of UK
and European legislation related to the protection of certain wild plants and
animals. Approval under that legislation will be required and a licence may be
necessary if bats are affected by the development. If bats are discovered you
must be aware that to proceed with the development without seeking advice
from Natural England could result in prosecution

The above permission/consent may contain pre-conditions, which require
specific matters to be approved by the Local Planning Authority before a
specified stage in the development occurs.  This means that a lawful
commencement of the approved development/works cannot be made until the
particular requirements of the pre-condition(s) have been met.  Please read the
letter attached to the decision notice for further information.

This approval is specific to the details of the development as shown on the
approved plans and other associated documentation.  Unless otherwise agreed
by the Council any departure from the approved plans will constitute
unauthorised development and may be liable to enforcement action.  As such
the Council must be advised in writing of any proposed variations from the
approved plans and other associated documentation at the earliest stage
possible.  A decision will then be made as to whether the changes can be dealt
with as a minor revision to the approved details or whether a revised application
is required.

This permission refers only to that required under the Town and Country Planning
Acts and does not include any consent or approval under any other enactment,
byelaw, order or regulation.

NB:

NB:

NB:

Page 80



page 5 / 7

P17/S0080/O

Head of Planning
7th April 2017

The principle of residential development is acceptable in this town centre site. The
application is in outline only and the submitted details demonstrate that the layout of
the development is acceptable and that a development of an appropriate scale and
design could be accommodated at the site. The County Highway Authority has not
raised an objection to the access which is considered to comply with the
requirements of the NPPF. This proposal would provide 3 small units of
accommodation in a very sustainable location.

Reason for Decision 

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy
Framework the Council takes a positive and proactive approach to development
proposals. The Planning Service works with applicants/agents in a positive and
proactive manner by offering a pre-application advice service and by advising
applicants/agents of issues that arise during the processing of their application and
where possible suggesting solutions to problems.

Note : A more detailed explanation is available in the officer's report, available in the
application case file.

Proposals in a conservation area
Affordable housing
Meeting housing needs
Outdoor amenity area
Loss of employment uses
Protect district from adverse development
Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

CON7
CSH3
CSH4
D3
E6
G2
H4
T1
T2

Key Policies 
1

Note : The full wording of the above policies are available on our website or in the
local plan documents, at our offices.

Page 81



page 6 / 7

P17/S0080/O

STATUTORY INFORMATIVE

Appeals to the Secretary of State

If you are aggrieved by the decision of your local planning authority to refuse
permission for the proposed development or to grant it subject to conditions, then
you can appeal to the Secretary of State for the Environment under sections 78 and
79 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

If you want to appeal, then you must do so within six months of the date of this
notice, using a form which you can get from :

The Planning Inspectorate
Customer Support Unit
Temple Quay House
2 The Square
Temple Quay
Bristol
BS1 6PN
Telephone : 0303 444 5000
www.planningportal.gov.uk
email: enquiries@pins.gsi.gov.uk.

The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal, but
he will not normally be prepared to use this power unless there are special
circumstances which excuse the delay in giving notice of appeal.

The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if it seems to him that the local
planning authority could not have granted planning permission for the proposed
development or could not have granted it without the conditions it imposed, having
regard to the statutory requirements, to the provisions of the development order and
to any directions given under the order.

In practice, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely
because the local planning authority based its decision on a direction given by him.

Purchase Notice

If either the local planning authority or the Secretary of State for the Environment
refuses permission to develop land or grants its subject to conditions, the owner may
claim that he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial use in its existing
state nor can he render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use by the
carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted.

In these circumstances, the owner may serve a purchase notice on the Council

Page 82



page 7 / 7

P17/S0080/O

(District Council, London Borough Council or Common Council of the City of London)
in whose area the land is situated.  This notice will require the Council to purchase
his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part VI, Chapter 1 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Compensation

In certain circumstances compensation may be claimed from the local planning
authority if permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of
State on appeal or on reference of the application to him.

These circumstances are set out in sections 114 and related provisions of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Planning Portal contains a wide range of helpful planning-related guidance and
services. You may wish to view their website (www.planningportal.gov.uk). 

Page 83



site plan 1:200

N

job

dwg. title

7 buttermarket,  thame
oxfordshire.      ox9 3ew
tel:        (01844)  260860

the old saracen's head

planning drawing

69 park street
Thame
Oxon

street scene (north east)

park street

path

road restriction

1. 2. 3.

location plan 1:1250

N

existing building to be removed

rev: a 12.06.14 planning

Appendix C

P
age 84


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes , 12/02/2020 Planning Committee

	8 P19-S4168-FUL - Blue Bonnets, 31 West End, Cholsey, OX10 9LP
	Appendices 1-4.3
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4_1
	Appendix 4_2
	Appendix 4_3


	9 P19-S4050-FUL - The Land North of Woodcote, Oxford Road, Woodcote
	Appendices A-B
	4c1055cdd832468db699f2409df5f56c
	1 Location Plan drwgno 7907.001 A
	Sheets and Views
	7907.001a Location Plan


	2 Access and Horsebox Parking Proposed drwgno 2054-002 A
	Sheets and Views
	_Rev A


	3 Access & Visibility Splays drwgno 2054-001 A
	Sheets and Views
	_Rev A


	4 Indicative  Jump Locations (1)
	Sheets and Views
	7907.003 Jump Locations


	5 Indicative Jumps


	10 P19-S4261-FUL - Bournes Farmhouse, Harpsden Road, Binfield Heath
	Appendices A-B
	Elevation & Floor Plan Shed Existing Drwgno 2.17
	Elevation Proposed Plot 1 Drwgno 2.13
	Elevations & Floor Plan Car Barn Proposed drwgno 2.15A
	Elevations Proposed Plot 2 Drwgno 2.14
	Floor Plan Proposed Drwgno 2.11
	Floor Proposed Plot 2 Drwgno 2.12
	Location Plan Drwgno 2.09
	Site Plan drwgno 2.10A
	Street Elevation Dwrgno 2.16
	Tree Protection Plan Drwgno 15097-BT2


	11 P20-S0092-O - 69 Park Street, Thame, OX9 3HU
	Appendices A-C
	19e6dcad9bfc4d878f377d99c8c30fda (1)
	Decision Notice
	Decision Notice - 2020-02-17T100858.187
	Composite_proposed_drwgno. 01a





